Public Document Pack

w WIRRAL

Local Pension Board

Contact Officer: Mike Jones, Principal Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 0151 691 8363

e-mail: MichaelJonesl@wirral.gov.uk

Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

2. APOLOGIES

3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members of the Board are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary
and non-pecuniary interests, in connection with any item(s) on the
agenda and state the nature of the interest.

4. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 22
February 2023.

5. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23
(Pages 5 - 28)

6. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23 - MANAGEMENT
QUESTIONS (Pages 29 - 68)

7. LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (LGPS) UPDATE
(Pages 69 - 76)

8. MEMBERS’ LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (Pages
77 - 90)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

UPDATE ON INVESTMENT RELATED CONSULTATIONS IN THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (Pages 91 - 94)

MINUTES OF WORKING PARTY MEETINGS (Pages 95 - 110)
NORTHERN LGPS UPDATE (Pages 111 - 126)

PENSION ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT [PERIOD OF
1 JAN - 31 MAR 2023] (Pages 127 - 130)

EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE
PUBLIC

The following items contain exempt information.

RECOMMENDATION: That under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by
the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to
that Act. The Public Interest test has been applied and favours
exclusion.

PENSION BOARD REVIEW 2022-23 AND WORK PLAN 2023-24
(Pages 131 - 150)

RISK REGISTER (Pages 151 - 158)

PENSION ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT [PERIOD OF
1 JAN - 31 MAR 2023] EXEMPT APPENDIX (Pages 159 - 182)

The PDF file below may not be suitable to view for people with
disabilities, users of assistive technology or mobile phone

devices. Please contact Yvonnemurphy@wirral.gov.uk if you would
like this document in an accessible format.



mailto:Yvonnemurphy@wirral.gov.uk

17

18

19

20

21

Agenda Item 4

LOCAL PENSIONS BOARD

Wednesday, 22 February 2023

Present: J Raisin (Chair)
R Dawson R Irvine
P Maloney L Robinson
D Ridland

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and in particular Matthew
Bennett the Director of Finance (and Section 151 Officer) of the Wirral MBC.

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence had been received from:
Geoff Broadhead

Peter Fieldsend

Stefan Van Arendsen

MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interests.
MINUTES

Resolved — That, subject to the resolution for Minute 16 stating that the
letter is for the Chair of Pensions Committee rather than the Director of
Pensions, the minutes of the Local Pensions Board meeting held on 16
December 2022 be approved as an accurate record.

Arising from Minute 5 the Chair thanked the Officers for circulating to all Board
Members, in January 2023, the Merseyside Pension Fund Stakeholder
Survey on Investment Beliefs 2023.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (LGPS) UPDATE

The Head of Pensions Administration for Merseyside Pensions Fund (MPF)
introduced the report of the Director of Pensions which provided a copy of an
update report on developments in the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) taken to Pensions Committee since the previous Board meeting. The
report included the review of the Further Education sector where a decision
was awaited on whether the Government would provide a guarantee to stand
behind the sector’s pension liabilities. Until that was confirmed, MPF would

Page 1



22

23

24

continue to take a prudent approach to funding and would review should a
central government guarantee be provided.

Resolved — That the report be noted.
MERSEYSIDE PENSION FUND BUDGET FINANCIAL YEAR 2022/23

The Head of Finance and Risk for Merseyside Pension Fund presented the
report of the Director of Pensions which provided a copy of the budget report
which had been taken to Pensions Committee. It was noted that the Fund was
valued at £10.3 billion at 31 December 2022 having peaked at £11 bn at 31
March 2022. The deterioration in market conditions resulted in lower external
investment management fees which was reflected within the projected spend
for 2022/23 and the approved budget for 2023/24.

Members discussed aspects of the report including external investment
management fees, pay and resources. Officers confirmed that costs were
subject to benchmarking exercises with results presented to working parties
and the Board.

Resolved — That the report be noted and the best practice requirement
for LGPS funds to set budgets sufficient to fulfil resourcing
requirements and meet regulatory requirements be noted.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR 2022/23 AND ANNUAL
REPORT FOR 2020/21

The Head of Finance and Risk for Merseyside Pension Fund presented the
report of the Director of Pensions which provided Board Members with a copy
of the treasury management policy statement and the treasury management
practices for Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) for the year 2023/24 taken to
Pensions Committee. It was noted that there were no changes to the previous
year and it was compliant with the best practice guidelines from CIPFA.

Resolved — That the report be noted.

MINUTES OF WORKING PARTY MEETINGS

The Chair introduced the report of the Director of Pensions which provided the
minutes of meetings of Working Parties held since the previous Board

meeting.

Resolved — That the minutes be noted.

Page 2



25

26

27

28

AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES

The Head of Finance and Risk for Merseyside Pension Fund presented the
report of the Director of Pensions which provided a copy of a report taken to
the Pensions Committee meeting updating the Fund’s list of authorised
signatories. It was noted that the only difference was the addition of the new
Director of Finance at Wirral Council following his appointment.

Resolved — That the report be noted.
PROPERTY PORTFOLIO RENT ARREARS AND WRITE OFFS

The Head of Finance and Risk for Merseyside Pension Fund presented the
report of the Director of Pensions which provided a copy of a report regarding
the write-off of irrecoverable property rent arrears that had been taken to the
Pensions Committee meeting. It was noted that it concerned three tenants out
of 160 in total, and the three companies had either gone into administration or
liquidation and impacted due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Resolved — That the report be noted.
EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Resolved — That under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the relevant
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act. The
Public Interest test has been applied and favours exclusion

PENSION ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT [PERIOD OF 1 OCT
— 31 DEC 2022]

The Head of Pensions Administration for Merseyside Pensions fund
presented the report of the Director of Pensions which provided monitoring
information on the key performance indicators in respect of work undertaken
by the administration team during the period: 1 October 2022 to 31 December
2022.

The Chair thanked the Head of Pensions Administration for consulting him in
respect of the Pensions Regulator’s Public Service Governance and
Administration Survey 2022-2023.

Resolved — That the report be noted.

Page 3



29

30

RISK REGISTER

The Director of Pensions presented his report which provided a copy of the
Fund’s Risk Register. It was noted that one new risk had been added since
the previous iteration.

Resolved — That the risk register report be noted.

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO RENT ARREARS AND WRITE OFFS EXEMPT
APPENDIX

Resolved — That the exempt appendix be noted.

Page 4



Agenda ltem 5
»WIRRAL

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN - STATEMENT OF
ACCOUNTS 2022/23

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Board Members with a copy of the report to be taken
to the next Pensions Committee in relation to Grant Thornton’s external audit of the Fund’s
Statement of Accounts for 2022/23.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Pension Board be recommended to consider and note the report.

Page 5



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
The review of the External Audit Plan supports Pensions Committee in fulfilling its
responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process and forms part of the

governance arrangements.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options have been considered as scrutiny of the audit process is an important

element of the Pension Board’s role.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Merseyside Pension Fund is required to subject its financial statements to external
scrutiny before a final version is published to ensure compliance with statutory
requirements.

The purpose of the Audit Plan is to direct and communicate the audit approach to
those charged with governance. The Audit Plan considers the risks to the audit in
forming the Audit Opinion and details the approach to addressing the key areas of
the Fund’s financial statements.

The results of this audit, including the opinion on the Funds Annual Statement of
Accounts and Annual Report will be reported back to the Board.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the appendix to this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the appendix to this report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

There are none arising from this report.

RELEVANT RISKS

A failure to provide the Board with information on the Fund’s activities could hinder
the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities. This report provides Board
Members with assurances that there are adequate arrangements in place for the
external audit of statutory financial statements for 2022/23.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Not relevant for this report.

Page 6



9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
9.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.
10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are none arising from this report.
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are none arising from this report.
REPORT AUTHOR:  Donna Smith

Head of Finance & risk

Telephone (0151)242 1312

email donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk
APPENDICES
Grant Thornton External Audit Plan 2022/23.
The PDF file below may not be suitable to view for people with disabilities, users
of assistive technology or mobile phone devices. Please contact
donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk if you would like this document in an accessible
format.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CIPFA: The Guide for Local Pension Boards

As set out in the appendix.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Pension Committee 22 June 2022
22 June 2021
25 March 2019

Audit & Risk Management Committee 27 June 2022
28 June 2021

Page 7


mailto:donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk
mailto:donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



° Grant Thornton

Merseyside Pension Fund
External Audit Plan

Year ending 31 March 2023
7 yine 2023
jab)

D
(o]




Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Sarah Ironmonger

g Key Audit Partner

S T 0161953 6499

IS E Sarah.L.Ironmonger@uk.gt.com

Stuart Basnett

Senior Manager

T 0151224 7232

E Stuart.H.Basnett@uk.gt.com

Curtis Wallace

Assistant Manager

T 0151 224 0891

E Curtis.AG.Wallace@uk.gt.com

Contents

Section

Key matters

Introduction and headlines
Significant risks identified
Other matters

Our approach to materiality
IT Audit Strategy

Audit logistics and team

Audit fees
Independence and non-audit services

Communication of audit matters with those charged with
governance

Page

O (00) o~ -

12

13
14
16

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate
only to the matters which have
come to our attention, which we
believe need to be reported to
you as part of our audit
planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be
subject to change, and in
particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting
all of the risks which may affect
the Pension Fund or dll
weaknesses in  your internal
controls. This report has been
prepared solely for your benefit
and should not be quoted in
whole or in part without our
prior written consent. We do not
accept any responsibility for
any loss occasioned to any third
party acting, or refraining from
acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this
report was not prepared for, nor
intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered
office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not
a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Key matters

National context

For the general population, rising inflation, in particular for critical commodities such as energy, food and fuel, is pushing many households
into poverty and financial hardship, including those in employment.

The pressures on household income have raised concerns that members will look at their pension contributions as a way of cutting back on
their monthly costs. The cost-of-living crisis is having a detrimental impact on pension savings, with some even dipping in to their savings to
supplement short-term needs and several members are also requesting early access to their pension after age 55 as a means to financially
manage their commitments. The cost of living crisis makes it even more important that lowly paid workers have access to a good quality
pension.

In planning our audit, we will take account of this context in designing a local audit programme which is tailored to your risks and
circumstances.

TT obed

Our Responses
L]

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to audit quality and financial reporting in the local government sector. Our proposed work and fee,
as set out furtherin our Audit Plan, has been agreed with management.

We will continue to provide you and your Audit & Risk Management Committee with sector updates providing our insight on issues from a
range of sources and other sector commentators

We hold annual financial reporting workshops for our clients to access the latest technical guidance and interpretation , discuss issues
with our experts and create networking links with other clients to support consistent and accurate financial reporting across the sector.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3



Introduction and headlines

Purpose

This document provides an overview of the
planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of Merseyside Pension Fund (‘the
Pension Fund’]) for those charged with
governance.

%espective responsibilities

he National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has
apsued a document entitled Code of Audit
HBractice (‘the Code’). This summarises
NWhere the responsibilities of auditors
begin and end and what is expected from
the audited body. Our respective
responsibilities are also set out in the
agreed Terms of Appointment and
Statement of Responsibilities issued by
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA),
the body responsible for appointing us as
auditor of Merseyside Pension Fund. We
draw your attention to both of these
documents.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with
the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for
forming and expressing an opinion on the
Pension Fund’s financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the
oversight of those charged with governance (the
Audit & Risk Management Committee).

The audit of the financial statements does not
relieve management or the Audit & Risk
Management Committee of your responsibilities.
It is the responsibility of the Pension Fund to
ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for the conduct of its business, and that public
money is safeguarded and properly accounted
for. We have considered how the Pension Fund
is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough
understanding of the Pension Fund's business
and is risk based.

Commercial in confidence




Introduction and headlines

Significant risks

Those risks requiring special audit
consideration and procedures to
address the likelihood of a material
financial statement error have been
identified as:

* Management over-ride of controls

U Valuation of Level 3 Investments

8 Valuation of Directly held

@ property

08/e will communicate significant
findings on these areas as well as
any other significant matters arising

from the audit to you in our Audit
Findings (ISA 260) Report.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Materiality

We have determined planning
materiality to be £97.016m (PY
£96.496m) for the Pension Fund,
which equates to 0.9% of your
gross investment assets as at 31
January 2023. We are obliged
to report uncorrected omissions
or misstatements other than
those which are ‘clearly trivial’
to those charged with
governance. As part of our risk
assessment, we have
considered the impact of
unadjusted prior period errors.
We have set performance
materiality at 75% of headline
materiality (£72.762m).

Clearly trivial has been set at
£4.8560m (PY £4.825m).

Audit logistics

Our interim visit will take place
in March 2023 and our final visit
will take place during July -
September 2023. Our key
deliverables are this Audit Plan,
our Audit Findings Report and
Auditor’s Annual Report.

Our proposed fee for the audit
will be £51,225 (PY: £48,000) for
the Pension Fund, subject to the
Pension Fund delivering a good
set of financial statements and
working papers.

We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's
Ethical Standard (revised 2019)
and we as a firm, and each
covered person, confirm that we
are independent and are able
to express an objective opinion
on the financial statements.

Commercial in confidence

New Auditing Standards

There are two auditing
standards which have been
significantly updated this year.
These are ISA 315 (Identifying
and assessing the risks of
material misstatement) and ISA
240 (the auditor's
responsibilities relating to fraud
in an audit of financial
statements). We provide more
detail on the work required later
in this plan.



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
ISA 240 Fraud in Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be misstated  Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the
Revenue and due to the improper recognition of revenue. revenue streams at the Fund, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising

Expenditure
Recognition

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

T abed

material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. * thereis little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
We have also rebutted the presumption of fraud in expenditure recognition. * opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited
* the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Wirral
Metropolitan Borough Council mean that all forms of fraud are seen as
unacceptable
Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Merseyside
Pension Fund.
Management over-ride Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of We will:
of controls management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The Fund faces external

. . . ) . ) * evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls over journals
scrutiny of its spending and stewardship of funds and this could potentially place

management under undue pressure in terms of how they report performance. * analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high

. o . . . . risk unusual journals
We therefore identified management override of control, in particular journals,

management estimates and transactions outside the course of business as a * testunusual journals recorded during the year and gfter the draft
significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of material accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration
misstatement. * gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical

judgements applied made by management and consider their
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence

* evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or
significant unusual transactions.

'Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to
either size or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is
significant measurement uncertainty.' (ISA (UK) 315)

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Risk Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of  The Fund revalues its investments on a quarterly basis to ensure that the

We will:

:_eve|t3 . c:lrtrglng \;OL;JetIS not materially different from the fair value at the financial +  evaluate management's processes for valuing Level 3 investments
nvestments  statements date.
. . . . * review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance management
BHI thi'r nott}ire Lfevel 3 mvestr:ent.vol.:iotlozs Ic:.ck cibsbervoble Inputs. Ibeiﬁ has over the year end valuations provided for these types of investments; to ensure that the
valuations therefore represent a significant estimate by management in the requirements of the Code are met
financial statements due to the size of the numbers involved (£2,883 million) ) d ] ) )
and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions. *  independently request year-end confirmations from investment managers
Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-routine * for a sample of investments, test the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the audited
transactions and judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by their very accounts, (where available) at the latest date for individual investments and agreeing these
nature require a significant degree of judgement to reach an appropriate to the fund manager reports at that date. Reconcile those values to the values at 31 March
valuation at year end. 2023 with reference to known movements in the intervening period and
Management utilise the services of investment managers as valuation experts ¢ inthe o'bse'nf:e of available o'ludited accounts, we will evaluate the competence, capabilities
to estimate the fair value as at 31 March 2023. and objectivity of the valuation expert
We therefore identified valuation of Level 3 investments as a significant risk, * testrevaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the
o which was one of the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement. Pension Fund’s financial records
8 * where available review investment manager service auditor report on design effectiveness of
o) internal controls.

H¥aluation of
(Birectlg held

property

The Fund revalues its directly held property on a quarterly basis to ensure that
the carrying value is not materially different from the fair value at the
financial statements date. This valuation represents a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the size of the numbers
involved (£568 million) and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key
assumptions.

Management have engaged the services of a valuer to estimate the current
value as at 31 March 2023.

We therefore identified valuation of directly held property, particularly
revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the
instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

write out to them and discuss with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was
carried out

challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and
consistency with our understanding

test, on a sample basis, revaluations made to ensure they have been input correctly into the
Fund’s financial records

where available review investment manager service auditor report on design effectiveness of
internal controls.

Management should expect engagement teams to challenge management in areas that are complex, significant or highly judgmental which may be the case for
accounting estimates and similar areas. Management should also expect to provide to engagement teams with sufficient evidence to support their judgments and
the approach they have adopted for key accounting policies referenced to accounting standards or changes thereto.

Where estimates are used in the preparation of the financial statements management should expect teams to challenge management’s assumptions and request

evidence to support those assumptions.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Other matters

Other work Other material balances and transactions

The Pension Fund is administered by Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council (the ‘Council’),  Under International Standards on Auditing,
and the Pension Fund’s accounts form part of the Council’s financial statements. irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and
perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance
« We read any other information published alongside the Council’s financial statements to ~ and disclosure'. All other material balances and
check that it is consistent with the Pension Fund financial statements on which we give transaction streams will therefore be audited.
an opinion and is consistent with our knowledge of the Authority. However, the procedures will not be as extensive
as the procedures adopted for the risks
identified in this report.

Therefore, as well as our general responsibilities under the Code of Practice a number of
other audit responsibilities also follow in respect of the Pension Fund, such as:

We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required,

o
jabl
Q
@
lC_D\ including:

 Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2022/23 financial
statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to the
2022/23 financial statements;

* Issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the Fund
under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State.

* Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to
law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act; or

* Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

* We carry out work to satisfy ourselves on the consistency of the pension fund financial
statements included in the pension fund annual report with the audited Fund accounts.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 8



Commercial in confidence

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Matter  Description Planned audit procedures
1 Determination We determine planning materiality in order to:
We have determined financial statement materiality — establish what level of misstatement could reasonably be expected

o based on a proportion of the gross investment assets to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
Q as at 31/01/2023 for the Pension Fund. Materiality at the financial statements
[0)) the planning stage of our audit is £97016m, which — assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit
= equates to 0.9% of your gross investment assets as at tests
~ 31/01/2023.

— determine sample sizes and

— assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in
the financial statements

2 Other factors An item may be considered to be material by nature where it may affect
An item does not necessarily have to be large to be instances when greater precision is required.
considered to have a material effect on the financial — We have identified the Fund Account as a statement where we will
statements. apply a lower materiality level, as these are disclosures which we

deem users of the accounts to be interested in and paying pensions
and collecting contributions is a core aspect of what a LGPS fund
does.

— We have set Fund account materiality at 10% of gross expenditure
based on prior year expenditure. This equates to £43.822m

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 9



Commercial in confidence

Our approach to materiality

Matter

3

8T abed

Description

Planned audit procedures

Reassessment of materiality

Our assessment of materiality is kept under review
throughout the audit process.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit
engagement, we become aware of facts and circumstances that would
have caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality.

Other communications relating to materiality we
will report to the Audit & Risk Management
Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify
misstatements which are material to our opinion on
the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless
report to the Audit & Risk Management Committee any
unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the
extent that these are identified by our audit work.
Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those
charged with governance’, we are obliged to report
uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than
those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with
governance. ISA 260 (UK]) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether
taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged
by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

We report to the Audit & Risk Management Committee any unadjusted
misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by
our audit work.

In the context of the Pension Fund, we propose that an individual difference
could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £4.850m
(PY £4.825m). If management have corrected material misstatements
identified during the course of the audit, we will consider whether those
corrections should be communicated to the Pension Committee and the
Audit & Risk Management Committee to assist them in fulfilling its
governance responsibilities.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Our approach to

materiality

Commercial in confidence

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the

monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered

Mqteriqlitg for the Financial £97016m This equates to 0.9% of gross investment assets at
Statements 31/1/23. In setting materiality we consider:

6T abe

The ownership structure of the Fund
The control environment of the Fund
The Fund’s business environment

Whether the Fund has any complex investment
arrangements

Any other sensitivities that would require materiality
to be reduced

Mqteriality for specific £43.822m This equates to 10% of prior year gross operating costs.

transactions, balances or
disclosures (Fund Account)

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.




Commercial in confidence

IT audit strategy

In accordance with ISA (UK) 315 Revised, we are required to obtain an understanding of the relevant IT and technical infrastructure and details
of the processes that operate within the IT environment. We are also required to consider the information captured to identify any audit
relevant risks and design appropriate audit procedures in response. As part of this we obtain an understanding of the controls operating over
relevant Information Technology (IT) systems i.e., IT general controls (ITGCs). Our audit will include completing an assessment of the design
and implementation of relevant ITGCs. We say more about ISA 315 Revised on slide 17.

The following IT systems have been judged to be in scope for our audit and based on the planned financial statement audit approach
we will perform the indicated level of assessment:

o
jabl
Q
@D
8T system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment
Oracle E-Business Financial reporting * Detailed ITGC assessment (design and implementation of controls)
Suite
Altair Member Data * Detailed ITGC assessment (design and implementation of controls)

Contributions and Benefits
payable

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Audit logistics and team

Planning and

Statutory
Pensions Pensions Audit & Risk Management Deadline
Committee Committee Committee 30 September
Interim audit 1 July 2023 Year end audit T8C TBC 2023
March - April ’ July - September ‘ ‘ ‘
2023 2023
Audit Plan Audit Findings Audit Findings Audit

risk assessment

Sarah Ironmonger, Key Audit Partner and
Engagement Lead

Sarah leads our relationship with you and
takes overall responsibility for the delivery of a
high quality audit, ensuring the highest
professional standards are maintained and a
commitment to add value to the Pension Fund.

Stuart Basnett, Engagement Manager

Stuart plans, manages and leads the delivery
of the audit, is your key point of contact for
your finance team and is your first point of
contact for discussing any issues.

Curtis Wallace, Engagement Incharge

Curtis assists in planning, managing and
delivering the audit fieldwork, ensuring that the
audit is delivered effectively and efficiently. He
supervises and co-ordinates the day to day
running of the audit.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Report Report opinion

Audited Entity responsibilities

Where audited entities do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does not impact on audit quality
or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby disadvantaging other clients. Where the elapsed time to complete
an audit exceeds that agreed due to an entity not meeting its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on site.
Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to an entity not meeting their obligations we
are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the agreed timescales. In addition, delayed audits will incur
additional audit fees.

Our requirements
To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to :

* ensure that you produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with us, including
all notes

* ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in accordance with the working paper
requirements schedule that we have shared with you

* ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are reconciled to the values in the
accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples for testing

 ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise agreed) the planned period of the
audit

* respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.



Commercial in confidence

Audit fees and updated Auditing Standards
including ISA 315 Revised

In 2017, PSAA awarded a contract of audit for Merseyside Pension Fund to begin with effect from 2018/19. The scale fee agreed in the contract was £28,399.
Since that time, there have been a number of developments, particularly in relation to the revised Code and ISA’s which are relevant for the 2022/23 audit.
For details of the changes which impacted on years up to 2021/22 please see our prior year Audit Plans.

The major change impacting on our audit for 2022/23 is the introduction of ISA (UK] 315 (Revised) - Identifying and assessing the risks of material
misstatement (ISA 315"). There are a number of significant changes that will impact the nature and extent of our risk assessment procedures and the work
we perform to respond to these identified risks. Key changes include:

«2¢ obed .

Enhanced requirements around understanding the Fund and Council’s IT Infrastructure, IT environment. From this we will then identify any risks arising
from the use of IT. We are then required to identify the IT General Controls (ITGCs’) that address those risks and test the design and implementation
of ITGCs that address the risks arising from the use of IT.
Additional documentation of our understanding of the Council’s business model, which may result in us needing to perform additional inquiries to
understand the Council's end-to-end processes over more classes of transactions, balances and disclosures.
We are required to identify controls within a business process and identify which of those controls are controls relevant to the audit. These include, but
are not limited to, controls over significant risks and journal entries. We will need to identify the risks arising from the use of IT and the general IT
controls (ITGCs) as part of obtaining an understanding of relevant controls.

o Where we do not test the operating effectiveness of controls, the assessment of risk will be the inherent risk, this means that our sample sizes may be

larger than in previous years.

These are significant changes which will require us to increase the scope, nature and extent of our audit documentation, particularly in respect of your
business processes, and your IT controls. We will be unable to determine the full fee impact until we have undertaken further work in respect of the above
areas. There is likely to be an ongoing requirement for a fee increase in future years, although we are unable yet to quantify that.

The other major change to Auditing Standards in 2022/23 is in respect of ISA 240 which deals with the auditor's responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit
of financial statements. This Standard gives more prominence to the risk of fraud in the audit planning process. We will let you know during the course of
the audit should we be required to undertake any additional work in this area which will impact on your fee.

Taking into account the above, our proposed work and fee for 2022/23, as set out below, is detailed overleaf and has been agreed with Management.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 14



Commercial in confidence

Audit fees

Actual Fee 2020/21 Actual Fee 2021/22  Proposed fee 2022/23
Merseyside Pension Fund Audit £51,249 £48,000 £51,225
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £51,249 £48,000 £51,225

Z obed

Wssumptions

In setting the above fees, we have assumed that the Pension Fund will:
¢ prepare a good quality set of accounts, supported by comprehensive and well-presented working papers which are ready at the start of the
audit

* provide appropriate analysis, support and evidence to support all critical judgements and significant judgements made during the course of
preparing the financial statements

* provide early notice of proposed complex or unusual transactions which could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Relevant professional standards

In preparing our fee estimate, we have had regard to all relevant professional standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical
Standard (revised 2019) which stipulate that the Engagement Lead (Key Audit Partner) must set a fee sufficient to enable the resourcing of the
audit with partners and staff with appropriate time and skill to deliver an audit to the required professional and Ethical standards.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 15



Commercial in confidence

Independence and non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK] 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity
and independence of the firm or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other
independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

In this context, we disclose that:

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your
attention. We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National

dit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public

odies.

‘%Ve confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have
pgade enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Pension Fund.

AN

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Independence and non-audit services

Other services
The following other services provided by Grant Thornton were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the
current financial year. These services are consistent with the Pension Fund’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any
changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton
International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

T

jabl
Q

D
Nervice Fees £ Threats Safeguards

o

Audit related

IAS 19 Assurance Letters  £25,500 Self-Interest (because  The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant
for Admitted Bodies (15 (£6,000 this is a recurring fee]  threat to independence as the fee for this work is expected to be £25,500 in
Expected) base fee + comparison to the total fee for the audit and in particular relative to Grant
£1,100 per Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no
letter + contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest
£3,000 threat to an acceptable level.
triennial
valuation
assurance)

Non-audit related

None

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Communication of audit matters with those

charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing and expected general
content of communications including significant risks and Key Audit Matters

Confirmation of independence and objectivity of the firm, the engagement team members
and all other indirectly covered persons

TYstatement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
dhdependence. Relationships and other matters which might be thought to bear on
@hdependence. Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network

rms, together with fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence
N

@gniﬁcont matters in relation to going concern

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written representations that have
been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud ( deliberate manipulation) involving management and/or

which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK],
prescribe matters which we are required
to communicate with those charged with
governance, and which we set out in the
table here.

This document, the Audit Plan, outlines
our audit strategy and plan to deliver
the audit, while the Audit Findings will be
issued prior to approval of the financial
statements and will present key issues,
findings and other matters arising from
the audit, together with an explanation
as to how these have been resolved.

We will communicate any adverse or
unexpected findings affecting the audit
on a timely basis, either informally or via
an audit progress memorandum.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for
performing the audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK}, which is directed towards
forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been
prepared by management with the
oversight of those charged with
governance.

The audit of the financial statements
does not relieve management or those
charged with governance of their
responsibilities.



/¢ abed

O Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

» WIRRAL

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23 -
MANAGEMENT QUESTIONS

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Board Members with a copy of the report to be
taken to the next Pensions Committee in relation to Grant Thornton’s audit of the Fund’s
Statement of Accounts for 2022/23.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Pension Board be recommended to note the report and consider management’s
responses to the auditor’s questions.

Page 29



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The review and endorsement of the management responses to questions posed by
the Fund’s external auditors supports Pensions Committee in fulfilling its
responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process and forms part of the
governance arrangements.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options have been considered as scrutiny of the audit process is an
important element of the Pension Board’s role.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Grant Thornton, as part of their audit of the Fund’s Statement of Accounts for
2022/23 have asked management to respond to a series of questions.

Fund officers have completed the questionnaire prepared by Grant Thornton and
present it to Members, to support Members responsibilities in relation to the financial
reporting process. This will inform the auditors risk assessment, where the auditor is
required to make inquiries of Pensions Committee under auditing standards.

The questionnaire provides members with an understanding of management
processes and the Fund’s oversight of the following areas:

. General Enquiries of Management
. Fraud

. Laws and Regulations

. Related Parties

. Going Concern

. Accounting Estimates

The completed questionnaire can be found as an appendix to this report.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the appendix to this report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

There are none arising from this report.

Page 30



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

RELEVANT RISKS

A failure to provide the Board with information on the Fund'’s activities could hinder
the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities. This report provides Board
Members with assurances that management processes and the Fund’s oversight in
particular areas are adequate to reduce the risk of error in the accounts, by ensuring
a clear framework for financial reporting, consistent with guidance.
ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Not relevant for this report.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no equality implications arising from this report.

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising from this report.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Donna Smith

Head of Finance & Risk
telephone (0151) 242 1312
email donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Grant Thornton Questionnaire with management responses.

The PDF file below may not be suitable to view for people with disabilities, users of
assistive technology or mobile phone devices. Please contact donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk if
you would like this document in an accessible format.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CIPFA: The Guide for Local Pension Boards
As set out in the appendix.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Pension Committee 22 June 2022

22 June 2021

Page 31



mailto:donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



° GrantThornton

Informing the audit risk assessment

for Merseyside Pension Fund
2022123

w

Curtis Wallace
In-charge Accountant
E: curtis.ag.wallace@uk.gt.com



Commercial in confider

7€ obed

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the
basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

2 ©2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Table of Contents

Section

Purpose

General Enquiries of Management
Fraud

Fud Risk Assessment

%ws and Regulations

I@%)act of Laws and Regulations
Related Parties

Going Concern

Accounting Estimates

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Appendix A — Accounting Estimates

3  © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

o
Q)
«Q
X X X X X X X X [

><><><

Commercial in confider

Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Merseyside Pension Fund’s external auditors and
Merseyside Pension Fund’s Pensions Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk
assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Pensions Committee under auditing standards.

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Pensions Committee.
ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Pensions Committee and also specify matters that
should be communicated.

s two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Pensions Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and developing a
structive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Pensions Committee and supports
= Pensions Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process.

@mmunication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Funds oversight of the
following areas:

* General Enquiries of Management
* Fraud,

* Laws and Regulations,

* Related Parties,

» Going Concern, and

* Accounting Estimates.

4 ©2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Merseyside Pension Fund’s management.
The Pensions Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any further

comments it wishes to make.

)€ abed

Q GrantThornton

5  © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Commercial in confider

General Enquiries of Management

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that
will have a significant impact on the financial statements
for 2022/237?

g9¢ obed

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the
accounting policies adopted by Merseyside Pension
Fund?

Have there been any events or transactions that may
cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies?
If so, what are they?

6  © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Investment Valuations

Global investment markets have been particularly volatile during 2022 in
response to significant political and geographical events, including the Russia-
Ukraine war, lockdowns in China, high inflation and slowing economic growth.
These changes have adversely affected the value of the Fund'’s investment
portfolio despite careful risk management. Market volatility has continued during
2022/23 with a £700m reduction in asset values between 31 March 2022 and 31
December 2022, reducing the Fund value from £11.0bn to £10.3bn.
Contributions

A number of our employers paid their contributions upfront for a 3 year period at
the beginning of 2020/21, consequently contribution income for 2022/23 will be
significantly lower than 2020/21 financial year.

Accounting policies adopted by MPF have been reviewed and are considered
appropriate.

Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

General Enquiries of Management

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including . . . . e
e T —— The. Fund us-es -derlvatlve flnall’l(?lla| assets to manage exposure to specific risks
arising from its investment activities.

Forward currency contracts are used by a number of our external Investment
Managers to hedge exposures to foreign currency back into sterling to manage
FX risk.

Equity option contracts are used by the Fund to protect it from falls in value in its
main investment markets.

Total return swap contracts are used by the Fund to rebalance the investment
portfolio to manage investment exposure.

6E abed

The Fund’s external bond managers make use of derivatives within commingled
bond funds and LDI-related funds.

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside

the normal course of business? If so. what are they? Management are not aware of any significant transactions outside the normal

course of business.

Q GrantThornton

7  ©2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Commercial in confider

General Enquiries of Management

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that None
would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so,

what are they?

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, None
please provide further details

o

Q . o—
@Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies None

/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial
spatements? If so, please provide further details

8. Other than in house solcitors, can you provide detalls gyt 4 solicitors are used for investment related activities, for example, rent reviews
of those solicitors utilised by Merseyside Pension Fund

during the year. Please indicate where they are working @nd new property lettings as well as legal documents in relation to private market assets.
on open litigation or contingencies from prior years? During 2022/23, MPF used the following external solicitors appointed using procurement
frameworks:

Brabners, DWF, Pinsent Masons, Gowling, Brodies, Eversheds, KPMG

8  ©2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

General Enquiries of Management

Question | Management response

9. Have any of the Merseyside Pension Fund’s service No
providers reported any items of fraud, non-compliance

with laws and regulations or uncorrected misstatements
which would affect the financial statements? If so,

please provide further details

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted e :
during the year and the issue on which they were Aon Hewitt — Strategic Investment Consultant (part year)

consulted? Reddington — Strategic Investment Consultant (part year)

Mercer — Actuary Services

CBRE Capital Advisors — Strategic Property Advisors

CBRE Asset Services — Property Management

Pensions Investments Research Consultants — Responsible Investment

Lexlea — Independent Investment Advisor

Tatton Consulting Services — Independent Investment Advisor

Gowling, Brabners, DWF, Bruce Gillingham Pollard, Grant Mills Wood, AS Retail
Property Ltd, CBRE, Legat Owen — Property Lease Reviews

T obed

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which g o je\ yndertaken and assets identified with potential credit losses are:
expected credit loss provisions may be required under

IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and Property rental income
investments? If so, please provide further details .
General accounts receivable

Q GrantThornton

9  © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Commercial in confider

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud
ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Pensions Committee and management. Management, with the
oversight of the Pensions Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of
honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Pensions Committee should consider the potential for override of controls and
inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As;E/Ierseyside Pension Fund’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are
fré@ from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering
the_ potential for management override of controls.

Ad)art of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including:

» assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

» process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks,

* communication with the Pensions Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and
* communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.

We need to understand how the Pensions Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of both
management and the Pensions Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set out
in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Merseyside Pension Fund’'s management.

Q GrantThornton

10 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Commercial in confider

Fraud risk assessment

1. Has Merseyside Pension Fund assessed the risk of Yes. none identified
material misstatement in the financial statements due to ’ ’

et Regular risk assessments are undertaken at MPF including the risk of fraud, with

How has the process of identifying and responding o Significant risks documented within the risk register, which is formally reviewed every 6

the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the months and reported to the Governance & Risk Working Party and Pensions Board.
EELliE @il preEses? The risk register is also a standing agenda item at the monthly management meeting
How do the Merseyside Pension Fund’s risk (FOG).A robust control environment exists at MPF, with strong and effective internal

nagement processes link to financial reporting? controls (structure, SOD, authorisation etc) to mitigate risks, these are documented

«Q within procedures, workflows, compliance manual and evidenced by the internal audit

® reports. MPF has an agreed SLA with Internal Audit with 150 audit days assigned to

5 the Fund, in recognition of the complexities of a large Pension Fund. Management
regularly request new systems/processes to be reviewed by internal audit to
independently assess and ensure a robust control environment is maintained. MPF
ensure there is appropriate operational due diligence on appointment and ongoing
monitoring programme of external investment management mandates. There is an
ongoing review of AAF106 assurance reporting on internal controls for service
organisation used by MPF. MPF staff undertake the corporate fraud awareness
training. A robust budget monitoring process is in place. No fraud risks were identified
for 2022/23.

Q GrantThornton

11 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Commercial in confider

Fraud risk assessment

2. What have you determined to be the classes of
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to Investments

fraud? Transfers out
Accounts payable

vt abed

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected No
or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either

within Merseyside Pension Fund as a whole, or within
specific departments since 1 April 20227 If so, please

provide details

12 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Q GrantThornton



Fraud risk assessment

Commercial in confider

Question ______________| Management response

4. As a management team, how do you communicate
risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with
governance?

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so,
please provide details

D@Jyou have any concerns there are areas that are at
r@X of fraud?
(@)

,&Ra there particular locations Merseyside Pension Fund
véh;lere fraud is more likely to occur?

6. What processes do Merseyside Pension Fund have
in place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?

13

Management communicate to those charged with governance through various
reports to GRWP, IMWP, Pensions Committee & Pensions Board. The risk
register is presented to GRWP and Pensions Board. The Chief Internal Auditor
prepares an annual report on MPF’s control environment and activities at MPF
and presents this along with the audit plan to GRWP and Pensions Board.

No, however, there is an inherent risk of fraud in all pension schemes.

The Pensions Regulator identifies, and the Fund continues to be concerned
about pension scams and cyber-security. Fund practices continue to be
strengthened and monitored; these are inherent sector risks rather than MPF
specific risks.

A cyber security internal audit was requested during 2022/23 by management to
provide assurances to management.

MPF has a robust internal control environment including separation of duties to
mitigate fraud risks.

Continual review of due diligence of transfer out processes in compliance with
TPR, Pension Scam Industry Group and LGA guidance on safeguarding
members against fraud.

Mortality screening.

Participation in the National Fraud Initiative.

A comprehensive internal audit plan for MPF under the agreed SLA.



Fraud risk assessment

Commercial in confider

| Managementresponse

7. How do you assess the overall control environment for
Merseyside Pension Fund including:

» the existence of internal controls, including segregation of
duties; and

» the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of
internal control?

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the
;I?k areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?
hat other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect
raud?
%’e there any areas where there is a potential for override of
controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting

process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve
financial targets)? If so, please provide details

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If
so, please provide details

14 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

The overall control environment is assessed as being robust. This
is concluded from management reviews, and assurances gained
from outcomes of internal and external audit work.

Internal Audit reports throughout 2022/23 have found that there is
a sound system of control in place, and that those controls are
consistently applied and fully effective with no significant
weaknesses identified. The management team at MPF continues
to ensure identified risks are effectively managed and the
recommendations emanating from the audit work are consistently
and effectively implemented within the agreed timescales.

Policies and procedures are determined to ensure there is a robust
control environment to help prevent, deter or detect fraud

There are no areas where controls may be overwritten or
inappropriate influence over the financial reporting processes to
achieve finance targets.

Compliance Manual for staff undertaking investment-related
activity.

No areas identified.

Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Fraud risk assessment

| Question | Management response

9. How does Merseyside Pension Fund The culture and ethical framework at Wirral Council mean that all forms of
communicate and encourage ethical behaviours .

and business processes of it's staff and fraud are seen as unacceptable. Staff are encouraged to report to senior
contractors? managers any concerns they have or anything unusual.

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns  \\/jrral Council and MPF policies and procedures, employee code of conduct,
about fraud? . . . . . . o . .
Whistleblowing Policy, team meetings, Senior Manager briefings, inductions,

What concerns are staff expected to report about intranets, Procurement rules and procedures (CPRs)
fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If

please provide details Many officers are members of professional bodies who also have ethical and

3y
g professional standards that must be adhered to.

i No significant issues have been reported.

There are no posts considered to be high risk from a fraud and corruption

perspective due to the internal control framework in place.

~0. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what
are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified,
assessed and managed?

11. Are you aware of any related party relationships  None identified in declarations received.
or transactions that could give rise to instances of

fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud
related to related party relationships and
transactions?

15 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Fraud risk assessment

12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud  |n assisting the Scheme Manager, the Pension Board has a role in reviewing
lalizs el ke o s Pereions Camiizet the Fund’s governance arrangements, the control environment, policies and
practices which includes fraud issues and risks.

How does the Pensions Committee exercise . . . .
There is a Governance & Risk Working Party that all members of Pensions

oversight over management's processes for

identifying and responding to risks of fraud and Committee are part of, that meets twice yearly.
TJeaches of internal control? The risk register is reported to GRWP.
@ The Chief Internal Auditor prepares an annual report on MPF control

%’hat has been the outcome of these arrangements  gnvironment and activities at MPF and the audit plan for the following year and

(DTS EET presents this to GRWP, members of Pensions Committee has direct access to

E2 the Chief Internal Auditor and can ask questions of audit or management. This
report will be presented to a future GRWP for 2022/23.

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential None
or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so,
what has been your response?

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery  None
Act? If so, please provide details

16 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Pensions Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Merseyside Pension Fund's operations are conducted
in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements.

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or
error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make
inquiries of management and the Pensions Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we become

are of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect on the
fipancial statements.

<'gsk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

AN
©

Q GrantThornton

17 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Impact of laws and regulations

Commercial in confider

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws
and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Merseyside Pension Fund have in
place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and
regulations?

Al you aware of any changes to the Fund’s regulatory
vironment that may have a significant impact on the Fund’s
fPancial statements?

o)
o

2. How is the Pensions Committee provided with assurance that
all relevant laws and regulations have been complied with?

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1
April 2022 with an on-going impact on the 2022/23 financial
statements? If so, please provide details

18 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Robust policies and procedures with a strong internal control
environment.

Additional assurances obtained by the Internal Audit plan.

The Pensions Regulator has a regulatory oversight role for LGPS and
MPF is required to undertake a compliance review of compliance with
Number 14 Code of Practice.

Fund officers sit on and participate in industry bodies e.g SAB
Investment, Governance & Engagement Committee, PLSA LA
Committee.

In assisting the Scheme Manager, the Pension Board has a role in
reviewing the Fund’s governance arrangements, the control
environment, policies and practices.

No regulatory changes are anticipated to have a significant impact on
the Fund’s financial statements

Regular reports are taken to Pensions Committee and working
parties. The Chair of Pensions Board reports to Pensions
Committee.

There have not been any instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations since 1 April 2022 with an on-going impact on the 2022/23
financial statement.

&2 Granthornton



Commercial in confider

Impact of laws and regulations

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or None
claims that would affect the financial statements? If
so, please provide details

5. What arrangements does Merseyside Pension Actual or potential litigation or claims would be reported to management team
Fund have in place to identify, evaluate and account . ) .
meeting and to those charged with governance. Legal and other professional

for litigation or claims?
advice would be sought as required.
o

Q

& Have there been any reports from other regulatory  None
ies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which

iBlcate non-compliance? If so, please provide

details

Q GrantThornton

19 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Commercial in confider

Related Parties

Matters in relation to Related Parties

Merseyside Pension Fund are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties. These may

include:

2S abed

bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Merseyside Pension Fund;
associates;

joint ventures;

a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Fund;

key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Fund or of any body that is a related party of the
Fund.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the [type of
body]'s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Fund must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the
financial statements are complete and accurate.

20 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider
Related Parties

1. Have there been any changes in the related There have been no changes to related parties.
parties including those disclosed in Merseyside
Pension Fund’s 2022/23 financial statements?
If so please summarise:
» the nature of the relationship between these
related parties and Merseyside Pension Fund
whether Merseyside Pension Fund has entered
into or plans to enter into any transactions with

nv) these related parties
Q) the type and purpose of these transactions
«Q
. What controls does Merseyside Pension Fund All Members of Pensions Committee are required to complete an annual declaration.
di§ve in place to identify, account for and disclose Senior Officers of the Fund and all investment team officers are required to complete an annual
declaration.

related party transactions and relationships?
ey * All declarations received are assessed for inclusion within the financial statements related party note.

3. What controls are in place to authorise and All Fund activities and transactions are in accordance with Wirral Council and MPF policies and
approve significant transactions and arrangements procedures, including Scheme of delegation, contract procedures rules, MPF’s compliance manual and
with related parties? conflicts of interest policy.

4. What controls are in place to authorise and All Fund activities and transactions are in accordance with Wirral Council and MPF policies and
approve significant transactions outside of the procedures, including Scheme of delegation, contract procedures rules, MPF’s compliance manual and
normal course of business? conflicts of interest policy.

21 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Going Concern

Matters in relation to Going Concern

The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial
statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's
Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern — Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.

Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of
significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis
fay accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related
%going concern is unlikely to exist.

this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies.
This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In
line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that the
financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume goingconcern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the
services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear
evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, the
underlying services will continue.

For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public
interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it
is through such work that it will be considered.

Q GrantThornton

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Going Concern

Commercial in confider

1. What processes and controls does management have
in place to identify events and / or conditions which may
indicate that the statutory services being provided by
Merseyside Pension Fund will no longer continue?

T
Q

(@)

®. Are management aware of any factors which may
(Hean for Merseyside Pension Fund that either statutory
({Iervices will no longer be provided or that funding for

statutory services will be discontinued? If so, what are
they?

3. With regard to the statutory services currently
provided by Merseyside Pension Fund, does Merseyside
Pension Fund expect to continue to deliver them for the
foreseeable future, or will they be delivered by related
public authorities if there are any plans for Merseyside
Pension Funds to cease to exist?

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Horizon scanning, keeping abreast with changes to the scheme and
potential future changes.

Review and respond to government consultations. Fund officers sit on and
participate in industry bodies e.g SAB Investment, Governance &
Engagement Committee, PLSA LA Committee.

NLGPS meeting with key stakeholders.

Regular cash management and liquidity reviews.

Triennial valuations assessment of duration of liabilities and funding level.
None

Merseyside Pension Fund expects to continue to deliver statutory services
for the foreseeable future.

& GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Going Concern

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting  Ygs, management are satisfied that the financial reporting framework
framework permits Merseyside Pension Fund to prepare

its financial statements on a going concern basis? Are permits MPF to prep:.:\r(-? its financial st-aterrlents-on a going concern b§S|s.
management satisfied that preparing financial Management are satisfied that preparing financial statements on a going
statements on a going concern basis will provide a concern basis will provide a faithful representation of the items in the

faithful representation of the items in the financial financial statement
Thtements? ancilal statements.

9G abe

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Accounting estimates

Matters in relation to accounting estimates

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates,
including:

* The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
* How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

* How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;

°.UThe body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;

Q) The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

«D How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

A&lpart of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important
where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement.

Specifically do Pensions Committee members:
* Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

» Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and

» Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?
We would ask the Pensions Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate.

25 ©2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

m Management i

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and
conditions, that are significant to the financial
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in,
accounting estimate and related disclosures?

8G abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

The identification of transactions, events and conditions begins with an
assessment of the existing accounting estimates. These are re assessed and
revised for the year that is being closed. The requirement for new estimates are
identified through the closedown process by on-going assessment of accruals
with team members and assessment of external plus internal financial
influences and factors.

The Fund has significant unquoted investments within Private Equity,
Infrastructure, Property and other Alternative investments. These are valued
within the financial statements using valuations from the Managers of the
respective assets. There are clear accounting standards for these valuations
and the Fund has in place procedures for ensuring that valuations applied by
Managers comply with these standards and any other relevant best practice.

Private Equity investments are valued at fair value in accordance with
International Private Equity and British Venture Capital Association guidelines.
These investments are not publicly listed and as such there is a degree of
estimation involved in the valuation.

Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

m Management i

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and g 4qe Funds are valued at the sum of the fair values provided by the
conditions, that are significant to the financial

statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, Administrators of the underlying Funds plus adjustments that the Hedge Fund

accounting estimate and related disclosures? Directors or Independent Administrators judge necessary. These investments
are not publicly listed and as such there is a degree of estimation involved in the
valuation.

Direct property and pooled property funds use valuation techniques to
determine the carrying amount. Where possible these valuations are based on
observable data, but where this is not possible, external fund management use
the best available data.

6S obed

2. How does the Fund's risk management process The Fund’s Finance team review accounting estimates to ensure they are
identify and address risks relating to accounting

estimates? reasonable.
The Fund’s Finance team and Investments team review through ongoing due
diligence and monitoring of Fund investments to ensure Fund investment
valuations have been prepared following proper practices.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Management response

o (P Lo IEMEGATIEM: [ 0 MRiEE, The Fund’s Finance team review accounting estimates to ensure they are reasonable
assumptions or source data, and the need for changes

in them, in relation to key accounting estimates? during the planning stages of year end.

The Fund’s Finance team and Investments team review through ongoing due diligence
and monitoring of Fund investments to ensure Fund investment valuations have been
prepared following proper practices.

ow do management review the outcomes of

vious accounting estimates? The Funds Finance team and Investments team review through ongoing due diligence

and monitoring of Fund investments to ensure Fund investment valuations have been
prepared following proper practices.

Internally prepared estimates are reviewed against actuals once known and
consideration given to any changes required for preparing future estimates.

09 0kd

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes

in 2022/23 and, if so, what was the reason for these? No Changes were considered necessary.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

6. How does management identify the need for and
apply specialised skills or knowledge related to
accounting estimates?

T

(ﬁ-{ow does the Fund determine what control activities
4D needed for significant accounting estimates,
ippjuding the controls at any service providers or
rranagement experts?

8. How does management monitor the operation of
control activities related to accounting estimates,
including the key controls at any service providers or
management experts?

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Property valuations are undertaken by independent Valuers appointed under CPRs
where skill and knowledge have been evaluated.

Unquoted investment assets in which MPF invests, undergo a rigorous due diligence
process by the Fund’s Investment Team to reach the decision to invest and a legal
agreement entered into. The internal investment team continues to undertake ongoing
monitoring of these Funds through the life of the investment.

Internal estimates are undertaken by senior officers at the Fund, whose skills and
knowledge have been assessed on appointment and hold relevant professional
qualifications, as required.

The Fund’s Finance team and Investments team review through ongoing due
diligence and monitoring of Fund investments to ensure Fund investment
valuations have been prepared following proper practices. Any concerns will be
raised with service providers.

The Fund’s Finance team and Investments team review through ongoing due
diligence and monitoring of Fund investments to ensure Fund investment
valuations have been prepared following proper practices.

All assurance reports on internal controls are reviewed by Fund officers when/if
available; any concerns will be raised will service providers.

Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and .
governance over management’s financial reporting Please see question 1 eEjglanEE:

process relevant to accounting estimates, including:

- Management’s process for making significant
accounting estimates

- The methods and models used

- The resultant accounting estimates included in the
financial statements.

29 abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 o GrantThornton



Commercial in confider

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

10. Are management aware of any transactions, No
events, conditions (or changes in these) that may

give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant
accounting estimates that require significant

judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so,

what are they?

11. Why are management satisfied that their Accounting estimates are made in accordance with IASs/IFRSs/LA Code and
rangements for the accounting estimates, as . . .
b . 9 Generally Accepted Accounting Practices. Management consider local
tailed in Appendix A, are reasonable? i i ) ) _ )
@ circumstances against available guidance and best practice and consider
g estimates are reasonable and proportionate.
w . . . . . . . . .
12. How is the Pensions Committee provided with  Set out in this document and reported to Pensions Committee.
eseLliEes il dis a"a"geme“ts for accounting Previous arrangements considered reasonable and adequate, with no
estimates are adequate ? previous issues reported for example by external or internal audit.

Q GrantThornton

31 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23



Commercial in confider

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model used to Controls used to Whether Underlying assumptions: Has there
make the estimate identify estimates management - Assessment of degree of been a
have used an uncertainty change in
expert - Consideration of alternative accounting
estimates method in
year?
m:g&;’ﬂ;g Valued at fair value at  Management External The Fund’s Investment No
RBperty the year-end using discuss and agree Independent Consultants have provided the
o independent external assumptions to Property Fund with their assessment of
B Valuers in accordance  be used and Valuer. the potential variance.
with the royal inputs into the

Institution of Chartered valuation process.
Surveyors (RICS)

Valuation — Global

Standards (the RICS

Red Book).

32 ©2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23 Q GrantThornton



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model used to
make the estimate

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
management
have used an
expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of
uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative
estimates

Commercial in confider

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in

33

I\f\’/';’f;'o" e Fair valuation of assets

instments in line with accounting
quoted standards, GAAP and
ity, Income : .

Kehds, unit industry practice

tpdsts, pooled

funds and

derivatives)

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Reliance on the
work of experts,
including
independent
auditor.

Custodian
and Fund
Managers

The Fund’s Investment

year?

No

Consultants have provided the
Fund with their assessment of

the potential variance.

Q GrantThornton



34

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

uation of
€el 3
ifDestments
(@mguoted and
pVate equities)

Method / model used to
make the estimate

Unquoted equity
investments are valued
at fair value in
accordance with
International Private
Equity and British
Venture Capital
Association guidelines.
These investments are
not publicly listed and
as such there is a
degree of estimation
involved in the
valuation.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Controls used to
identify estimates

For unlisted
investments
wherever possible
valuations are
obtained via the
Independent
Administrator.

Whether
management
have used an
expert

Custodian
and Fund
Managers

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of
uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative
estimates

The Fund’s Investment

Commercial in confider

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

No

Consultants have provided the
Fund with their assessment of

the potential variance.

Q GrantThornton



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model used to

make the estimate

Valuation of
level 3
investments
(CONTINUED)

/9 abed

35 © 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Merseyside Pension Fund 2022/23

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
management
have used an
expert

Valuations that
are obtained
direct from the
Manager are
verified against
the latest
available audited
accounts adjusted
for any cash flows
up to the
reporting date.

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of
uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative
estimates

Commercial in confider

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

o GrantThornton



99 abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

O G ra nt Thornton ‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to

one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not
provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk



Agenda Item 7

» WIRRAL

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (LGPS)
UPDATE
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

This report will be presented at Pension Committee on 11 July and provides an overview
of changes affecting the future administration and governance of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS).

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Local Pensions Board be recommended to note the administration and

governance changes to the LGPS, to ensure continued compliance with legislation,
statutory guidance, and industry codes of practice.

Page 69



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

There is a requirement for the Pensions Board to be fully informed of national
directives and legislative developments to assist the administering authority in
ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Scheme.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

This is the most appropriate option for informing Pension Board of industry
developments.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Care Revaluation Date

On 9 March 2023, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
(DLUHC) published its response to the consultation issued in February 2023, setting
out proposals to change the annual revaluation date for the LGPS from 1 April to 6
April.

The response confirmed that the change would take place and on the same day the
LGPS (Amendment) Regulations 2023 were laid (coming into effect on 31 March
2023).

The primary purpose of this change to the annual revaluation date is to remove the
impact of inflation from annual allowance calculations which should only reflect the
increase in a member’s pension benefits above inflation for the pension input period;
that is, the period over which pension growth is measured.

Historically, the government introduced a directive on 8 July 2015 to realign the
pension input period with the tax year by April 2016, this inadvertently included
inflation within the assessment of annual pension growth for members of public
sector pension schemes. To date the impact has been negligible because inflation
has been relatively low and consistent until very recently.

The amendment to the revaluation date has removed this unintended impact on
annual allowance calculations and will reduce the number of LGPS members who
would have been affected by an Annual Allowance Tax Charge for the 2022/23 tax
year because of the recent high rate of inflation.

Annual and Lifetime Allowance Changes
The Spring Budget on 15 March 2023 announced several major changes to the
taxation of pension benefits. These changes came into effect from 6 April 2023 and

are summarised below:

e an increase to the annual allowance from £40,000 to £60,000, and the money
purchase annual allowance from £4,000 to £10,000

Page 70



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

e an increase to the adjusted income level for the tapered annual allowance from
£240,000 to £260,000 and the minimum tapered annual allowance from £4,000 to
£10,000

e The abolition of lifetime allowance charges for benefit crystallisation events
occurring on or after 6 April 2023

e A change to the taxation of any lifetime allowance excess lump sum to be at
marginal rate not 55%, with similar changes to serious ill-health or death benefit
lump sum payments.

Alongside the above changes it was confirmed that the maximum tax-free lump sum
available to member would remain at 25% of current lifetime allowance amount of
£1,073,100.

These changes will be welcomed by higher earners in the LGPS, as well as some
middle-income earners with long local government careers who receive a pay rise.

Although it should be remembered that the majority of LGPS members will not be
affected by these changes and that the average LGPS pension in payment is in the
region of £5,000 per annum.

Government response to McCloud Remedy

On 6 April 2023 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
(DLUHC) issued its response to the 2020 consultation on Amendments to the Local
Government Pension Scheme statutory underpin.

The response confirms the main changes to the underpin that were proposed in the
2020 consultation as follows:

e underpin to be extended to younger members in scope.

e members will be in scope of underpin protection if they were active in the LGPS
or another public service pension scheme on or before 31 March 2012,

- were an active member of the career average scheme,
- did not have a disqualifying gap in service (more than 5 years), and

- leave active membership with a deferred or immediate entitlement to a
pension, or they die in service.

e underpin service will be from 1 April 2014 to the earlier of 31 March 2022, the
date of leaving active service, or reaching final salary normal pension age.

Key sections of the response include:

e proposed changes in respect of transfers to ensure consistency with other public
service pension schemes, requiring past transfers to be revisited in terms of
award and cash payments.

Page 71



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

¢ annual benefit statements will include estimated underpin values, to take effect
for statements issued from the 2024/25 scheme year.

A further consultation is to be held on draft regulations and a number of areas where
final decisions have yet to be made, including whether service must be aggregated
to qualify for the underpin, remaining issues regarding transfers and pension sharing,
along with a proposal to enable underpin protection to continue to build up following
flexible retirement.

Final regulations will be made later in the year expected to become effective from1
October 2023 backdated to 1 April 2014.

DLUHC intends to work with the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) to set up a working
group to consider the statutory and SAB guidance needed to ensure clear and
consistent implementation of the remedy across the LGPS.

A McCloud remedy factsheet for members has been published alongside the
consultation response in collaboration with the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB),
accessible here:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment data/file/1146603/LGPS McCloud factsheet.pdf

Further member communications are planned by the SAB McCloud Communications
Working Group.

State Pension Age Review

On 30 March 2023, the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) published its
2023 review of the State Pension Age in compliance with the regulatory framework
for government to undertake a regular review in accordance with the Pensions Act
2014.

The State Pension Age is currently age 66 and will rise to age 67 between 2026 and
2028 before rising again to age 68 between 2044 and 2046.

At the first review in 2017, the Government accepted the recommendation that
subject to further review, the timetable to increase the State Pension age to age 68
should be brought forward to between 2037 to 2039.

The 2023 DWP review confirms the rise to age 67 between 2026 and 2028 remains
appropriate, although, the Government does not intend to change existing legislation
to implement the recommendation of the 2017 review at the current time.

It plans to have a further review within two years of the next Parliament to consider
whether the rise to age 68 should occur earlier, while confirming a commitment to
the principle of providing 10 years’ notice of any changes.

The Government must publish the next report no later than 29 March 2029.

Page 72


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1146603/LGPS_McCloud_factsheet.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1146603/LGPS_McCloud_factsheet.pdf

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

4.0

4.1

4.2

Pension Dashboard Delay

On 2 March, the Pensions Minister, Laura Trott, issued a written statement
announcing delays to the delivery of Pensions Dashboards. The statement explains
that the Pensions Dashboards Programme (PDP) will be unable to meet the
connection deadlines set out in legislation, and the timeline will need to be revised to
allow more time to deliver the complex dashboards infrastructure.

All connection deadlines for schemes will be changing with the potential that the
timetable could be delayed for a period of 12 months - potentially extending the
connection date for the LGPS from September 2024 to September 2025.

A further update from the minister is scheduled to be communicated ahead of the
summer recess, although this may not confirm the revised timeline.

Since the written statement, the key message from the Pensions Minister, DWP,
PDP and the Pension Regulator is that plans for Dashboards will still go ahead and
that all schemes should continue with their dashboard planning and preparations.

TPR New General Code

The Pensions Regulator (TPR) is expected to publish the New General Code,
formerly referred to as the Single Code of Practice, in its final form in the next few
months. The Code consolidates and revises several existing codes, formalises the
requirement for an Effective System of Governance and introduces the process of
Own Risk Assessments.

New actuarial, internal audit and risk functions will also be required, and cyber risk
stewardship along with climate change will be included in a code of practice for the
first time.

The move from one dedicated code for public service pension schemes to a general
code for all schemes will require innovative thinking, and the Fund is working with its
professional advisers on the most effective approach to assess, implement, and
demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the new Code. The initial stage of
the workstream has commenced with actions in progress to undertake a gap
analysis of current policies against the draft code.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As the proposal to bring forward the date to increase the State Pension Age to 68 did
not materialise following the 2023 government review, there will be no immediate
impact on the costs of the LGPS due to the alignment of normal pension age with
State Pension Age.

The cumulative cost of McCloud across employers participating in the Fund has
been assessed by the actuary to be in the region of £100 million, representing 1% of
the total Fund liabilities of £10.2 billion, as calculated at the 31 March 2022 triennial
valuation.

Page 73



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.0

7.1

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The administering authority solicitor, acting for the Fund, provides advice as to the
implementation and interpretation of legislative and governance requirements.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

The change to the annual revaluation date will reduce the burden on Fund Officers to
prepare Pension Saving Statements and respond to queries in respect of the
2022/2023 pension input period.

Although, in the short term, the timing of the change has had an impact on Fund
resources and software suppliers being required to update calculations and reporting
processes, central guidance was provided to Funds to assist in managing the
change until systems are updated.

The administrative requirements of the McCloud remedy and the new General Code
will be significant with the level of additional resource and professional advisory costs
to ensure compliance dependent on the complexity of the final provisions and the
timely development of systems to provide bulk calculations.

The changes to the taxation of benefits will necessitate an update of scheme
literature, standard letters, and the website. Procedures will need to be reviewed
relating to payment and reporting the correct tax on any benefits in excess in excess
of the lifetime allowance for any benefit crystallisation events after 6 April 2023.

In its continuing preparations for connection to the Pensions Dashboard, the Fund
are engaging with the Fund’s system supplier, Heywood Pension Technologies, as
the preferred supplier to connect to the secure national digital architecture. As part of
this work, Fund Officers are working with the National LGPS Frameworks team to
develop a procurement framework for approved Integrated Service Providers.

The Pensions Dashboard Programme and the Pensions Regulator continue to
encourage schemes to ensure their member data is ready for connection to the
national dashboard infrastructure.

The Fund continues with its programme to move all employers to monthly data
collection by March 2024, as this provides timelier member data from employers but
also actively integrates into the quality assurance and quality control reports and
processes embedded within the operational activities of the administration teams.

For deferred members, the officers continue to work with the Fund’s Data Tracing
provider to validate postal addresses and to trace members who have moved house
without notifying the Fund.

RELEVANT RISKS

There is a risk of miscommunication and incorrect payment of pension benefits to
members if the legislative changes are not implemented in accordance with the
revised regulations and guidance with an associated impact on employer costs.

Page 74



7.2

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

Failure to comply with regulations or a failure to meet revised governance
expectations may lead to sanction by the Pensions Regulator, including the
possibility of financial penalties and reputational damage.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

The changes to administration and governance of the LGPS are consulted on at
national level by the relevant government department or the Pensions Regulator.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) and the Pensions
Regulator undertake equality impact assessments regarding the provisions of the
LGPS Regulations and the administration and governance of public service pension
schemes.

The Equality Statement published on the introduction of the Local Government
Pension Scheme 2014 can be viewed at: https://mpfund.uk/lgpsequalitystatement

DLUHC and HM Treasury undertake equality impact assessments with regard to the
statutory reform of the public sector pension schemes and LGPS.

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

The Fund continues with its digital strategy across all operational areas and
communications with stakeholders, with the aim to improve service delivery and to
reduce its internal carbon footprint.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

There are none directly arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR:  Yvonne Murphy

Head of Pensions Administration
telephone: (0151) 242 1333
email: yvonnemurphy@wirral.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS

DLUHC response to the 2020 consultation on Amendments to the Local Government
Pension Scheme Statutory Underpin

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-

scheme-amendments-to-the-statutory-underpin/outcome/amendments-to-the-

local-government-pension-scheme-statutory-underpin-government-

response#executive-summary

Page 75


https://mpfund.uk/lgpsequalitystatement
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-amendments-to-the-statutory-underpin/outcome/amendments-to-the-local-government-pension-scheme-statutory-underpin-government-response#executive-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-amendments-to-the-statutory-underpin/outcome/amendments-to-the-local-government-pension-scheme-statutory-underpin-government-response#executive-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-amendments-to-the-statutory-underpin/outcome/amendments-to-the-local-government-pension-scheme-statutory-underpin-government-response#executive-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-amendments-to-the-statutory-underpin/outcome/amendments-to-the-local-government-pension-scheme-statutory-underpin-government-response#executive-summary

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

» WIRRAL

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: MEMBERS’ LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Board members with a copy of a report to Pensions
Committee on this subject. It also reminds Board members of their learning and
development responsibilities.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Local Pension Board be recommended to note the report and consider the
opportunities for learning and development.

Page 77



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

There is statutory requirement for members of the Local Pension Board to undertake
training and a requirement for the Board to be kept informed of pension fund policies
and developments as a part of their role in supporting the administering authority.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not relevant for this report. The Pensions Regulator has a clear expectation
documented within its Code of Practice for the administration and governance of
Public Sector Schemes, that schemes must regularly assess training opportunities to
ensure that decision-making and oversight groups have an adequate level of
knowledge to carry out their roles effectively.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
In accordance with the Pensions Act 2004 each member of the Local Pension Board

must be conversant with key areas of knowledge and understanding of the law
relating to pensions with particular reference to:

. Background and understanding of the legislative framework of the LGPS:
. General pension legislation applicable to the LGPS;

. Role and responsibilities of the Local Pension Board;

. Role and responsibilities of the Administering Authority;

. Funding and investment;

. Role and responsibilities of Scheme Employers;

. Tax and contracting out;

. Role of advisors and key persons;

. Key bodies connected to the LGPS.

Pension Board members are expected to complete induction training within the first
three months of appointment. This consists of an online training course provided in a
Trustee Toolkit by the Pensions Regulator (TPR).

Pension Board members undertake the same knowledge and understanding
framework which is currently provided to members of Merseyside Pension Fund
through the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework. Board Members have been
provided with access to the LGPS Online Learning Academy (LOLA) has been
developed by Hymans Robertson as an online training platform providing ‘bitesize’
learning modules. The varied subject matter provides the ability for individuals to
absorb information at their own pace with access to further information on each
module for a more in-depth understanding of a particular area.

As set out in the accompanying report, it is proposed that the learning and
development policy is updated and, subject to approval at Committee, Board
members will be required to comply with the updated policy.

Page 78



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Fund makes a budgetary provision for training. Members will be advised of the
costs of events on a case-by-case basis.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There is a statutory requirement for Pension Boards to evidence current levels of
knowledge and understanding and for the Fund to include detailed information on
training events offered and attended by Board members in its annual report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

There are none arising directly from this report.

RELEVANT RISKS

A failure to provide the Local Pension Board appropriate training and with
information on legislative changes and the Fund’s activities could hinder the Board in
fulfilling its statutory requirements.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Training needs assessments are undertaken periodically to assist in the
development and provision of learning opportunities.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no equality implications arising from this report. The additional flexibility
provided by online learning enhances the training offer to Board members. Support
is available for Board members who may need assistance to access the programme.
ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report. The increased availability of virtual
learning will help to reduce travel. Travel by public transport to training events is
encouraged.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach

(Peter Wallach, Director of Merseyside Pension Fund)
telephone:
email: peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk

Page 79



APPENDICES
Appendix 1 Report to Pensions Committee
BACKGROUND PAPERS

CIPFA: The guide for local pension boards
CIPFA: Code of Practice on Knowledge & Skills

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Page 80



» WIRRAL

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
11 JULY 2023

REPORT TITLE: MEMBERS’ LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to update Members on revisions to CIPFA’s (the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) guidance on Pensions Knowledge and Skills
and to seek approval for officers to prepare an updated learning and development
framework.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Pensions Committee be recommended to:

1. note the report and the recommended areas of learning and development
2. approve the updating of the existing learning and development framework to reflect
revisions to CIPFA’s Knowledge and Skills Framework

Page 81



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The administration and the investment-related aspects of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) are technical and complex areas. Good governance is
supported by informed decision-making.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

There is an option not to provide training. However, the Pensions Regulator has a
clear expectation documented within its Code of Practice for the administration and
governance of Public Sector Schemes, that schemes must regularly assess training
opportunities to ensure that decision-making and oversight groups have an adequate
level of knowledge to carry out their roles effectively.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In recent years there has been a marked increase in the scrutiny of public service
pension schemes including the LGPS. The Public Service Pensions Act 2013
introduced new governance legislation, including the requirement for Local Pension
Boards to be set up and extended the remit of the Pensions Regulator to public
service schemes as set out in its Code of Practice 14. Additionally, the Department
of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) and the Scheme Advisory
Board (SAB) have emphasised the need for the highest standards of governance in
the LGPS. This includes ensuring that all involved in the governance of public sector
funds can evidence they have the knowledge, skills and commitment to carry out
their role effectively.

The introduction of Markets In Financial Instruments Directive 1l (MIFID II) in January
2018 required Committee members to evidence their knowledge in order for MPF to
be treated as a professional investor. Also, the Scheme Advisory Board for England
and Wales has reviewed governance arrangements for LGPS funds. This project —
termed ‘Good Governance’ — addressed stakeholder knowledge and skills. A clear
recommendation of the Good Governance project is that the knowledge levels
already statutorily required of Board members should also be required of Committee
members. These recent events have reaffirmed that LGPS funds should evidence
the training provided and current knowledge and understanding levels retained within
their Committee and Board.

The CIPFA Pensions Panel has developed a technical knowledge and skills
framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme. The framework was adopted
by Pensions Committee in 2010 as demonstrating best practice and enables the
Fund to determine that it has the appropriate mix of knowledge and skills necessary
to discharge its governance requirements. It also assists Members in planning their
training and development needs.

in June 2021, CIPFA issued two documents providing updated guidance on LGPS

knowledge and skills. These are the ‘Code of Practise on LGPS knowledge and
skills’ and the ‘Knowledge and Skills framework for LGPS committee members and

Page 82



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

LGPS officers’. These update and replace the previous Code of Practise and the
separate 2010 Knowledge and Skills frameworks for committee members and
officers. This updated guidance has been issued because of the significant
enhancements and alterations to the governance and operation of the LGPS in
recent years.

As explained above, Pensions Committee has adopted and based its approach to
learning and development on the earlier version of the CIPFA Code. The updating by
CIPFA of the code and the issuing of a new framework require Pensions Committee
to update its policies relating to training to be in accordance with the 2021 CIPFA
guidance. The key elements of the revised CIPFA code and framework including the
five key principles, the seven statements and eight core technical areas are
described below. In line with the scope of the Code, it is proposed that the adoption
of this 2021 Code of Practise be applicable to Pensions Committee, Pension Board
members and also senior fund officers.

The CIPFA guidance anticipates at all LGPS funds will update their training policy
considering the content of the 2021 code and framework. The updating of the
approach to the learning and development of the members of Pensions Committee.
Pension Board and senior fund officers will mean that members of the Committee
and board will be required to undertake training and acquire knowledge and skills
based on the latest CIPFA guidance.

The delivery of effective and comprehensive training is needed to facilitate the
acquisition of necessary knowledge and understanding for those responsible for the
governance, decision making and operation of the Pension Fund. Pensions
Committee is the primary governance and decision-making body within MPF.
However, officers and the Pension Board also have important roles in the overall
governance of the Fund. Consequently, the Fund’s approach to pensions knowledge
and skills must include all of the Pensions Committee, Pension Board and senior
fund officers.

In 2010, CIPFA issued its Pensions Knowledge and Skills Frameworks for Members
and officers; these included six areas of knowledge and skills identified as core.
These were:

e pensions legislative and governance context

e pensions accounting and auditing standards

¢ financial services procurement and relationship management
e investment performance and risk management

¢ financial markets and products knowledge

e actuarial methods, standards and practices.

This framework for elected members was adopted by Committee as the basis for its
training and development programme. A notable omission from the 2010 CIPFA
Framework was that pensions administration was not included as a core area of
knowledge and skills.

The new CIPFA Pensions Knowledge and Skills Guidance

Page 83



3.9

In June 2021, CIPFA issued two documents which update and replace firstly the
previous Code of Practice on Knowledge and Skills, and, secondly, the separate
2010 Pensions Knowledge and Skills Frameworks for Members and officers. The
new Code of Practice on LGPS Knowledge and Skills seeks to “embed the
requirements for identifying the adequacy of, acquiring and maintaining of,
appropriate knowledge and skills”. The 2021 Code of Practise states “every LGPS
administering authority should secure adequate resources and appropriate training”
having also “set out the broad areas of knowledge required by those responsible for
decision making, management, scrutiny or oversight of the LGPS”. CIPFA further
indicates that those to whom the Code is applicable include Pensions Committee
members, Pension Board members and fund officers. The Code goes on to state “it
Is hoped that all LGPS administering authorities will adopt this Code as part of their
LGPS knowledge and skills policy (or equivalent ) as appropriate to their
circumstances. It is expected this will be the case for all administering authorities
where key LGPS officers are CIPFA professional members”. The 2021 Code of
Practice is underpinned by five key principles. These are similar to those in the
previous versions of the Code but expanded to reflect the present regulatory and
more complex environment within which the LGPS now operates. The five principles
which underpin the 2021 Code of Practice are:

1. administering authorities responsible for the administration of the LGPS
recognise that effective management, decision-making, governance and other
aspects of the delivery of the LGPS can only be achieved where those
involved have the requisite knowledge and skills to discharge the duties and
responsibilities allocated to them.

2. administering authorities have the necessary resources in place to ensure all
staff, members or other persons responsible for the management, decision
making, governance and other aspects of the delivery of the LGPS acquire
and retain the necessary LGPS knowledge and skills.

3. administering authorities have in place formal and comprehensive objectives,
policies and practices, strategies and reporting arrangements to effectively
acquire and retain LGPS knowledge and skills for those responsible for the
management, delivery, governance and decision making of the LGPS.

4. the associated policies and practises are guided by reference to a
comprehensive framework of knowledge and skills requirements such as
those set down in the CIPFA LGPS Knowledge and Skills Framework, while
also having regard for overriding legal requirements, The Pensions Regulator
and other government guidance.

5. the administrative authority has designated a named individual to be
responsible for ensuring that policies are implemented.

Page 84



3.10 CIPFA recommends that all administering authorities adopt as part of their
knowledge and skills framework, seven statements. These are:

3.11

3.12

1.

This LGPS administering authority adopts the key principles of the Code of
Practise on LGPS Knowledge and Skills.

This LGPS administering authority recognises that effective management,
governance, decision-making and other aspects of the delivery of the LGPS
can only be achieved where those involved have the requisite knowledge and
skills to discharge the duties and responsibilities allocated to them.

This administering authority has in place formal and comprehensive
objectives, policies and practises, strategies and reporting arrangements for
the effective acquisition and retention of LGPS knowledge and skills for those
responsible for the management, delivery, governance and decision making of
the LGPS

These policies and practices will be guided by reference to a comprehensive
framework of knowledge and skills requirements such as those set down in
the CIPFA LGPS Knowledge and Skills Framework.

This administering authority will ensure that it has adequate resources in
place to ensure all staff, members or other persons responsible for the
management, decision making, governance and other aspects of the delivery
of the LGPS acquire and retain the necessary LGPS knowledge and skills.

This administering authority will report annually on how its knowledge and
skills policy has been put into practise throughout the financial year in the
fund's annual report.

This administering authority has delegated the responsibility for the
implementation of the requirements of the Code of Practice to the appropriate
officer who will act in accordance with the administering authority’s knowledge
and skills policy statement.

It is recommended that Committee adopts the 2021 Code of Practice on LGPS
Knowledge and Skills including the five principles and seven statements set out
above.

In June 2021, CIPFA also issued the Knowledge and Skills framework for LGPS
committee members and LGPS officers. This replaces the 2010 version. It reflects

Page 85



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

the latest developments in the area of knowledge and skills for the LGPS at the time
of publication. A separate framework remains in place for local pension board
members.

The 2021 CIPFA Code and Framework identify eight core technical areas where
appropriate knowledge and skills should be achieved and maintained. The eight core
areas expand the six core areas identified by CIPFA in 2010. The eight core areas
are:

e pensions legislation and guidance

e pensions governance

e funding strategy and actuarial methods

e pensions administration and communications

e pensions financial strategy, management, accounting, reporting and audit
standards

¢ investment strategy, asset allocation, pooling, performance and risk management

e financial markets and products

e pension services procurement, contract management and relationship
management

It is recommended that Pensions Committee adopts the eight core areas of
knowledge and skills as those to be covered in its training policy and any other
training delivered in accordance with that policy.

The 2021 Framework also provides guidance on the delivery, monitoring, reporting
and compliance with the 2021 Knowledge and Skills Framework. This includes:

e Guidance on the training policy that is expected of all LGPS funds by the 2021
CIPFA Code of Practice

e The delivery of training

e Monitoring and ongoing review of knowledge and skills including recording
attendance at training

e Reporting and compliance which includes reference to the fact that the 2021
Code of Practice requires each administering authority to designate a named
individual with responsibility for ensuring their policies are implemented.

Learning and Development Opportunities

On occasion, formal training sessions are included in Investment Monitoring Working
Parties. Nonetheless, presentations by external professional organisations and the

Page 86



3.17

3.18

3.19

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

deliberative nature of all the working parties mean that attendance is regarded as an
important element of Member development.

The Local Government Pensions Committee-organised ‘Fundamentals’ course is
considered essential for all Members to complete. It provides a comprehensive
overview of the LGPS and the ‘trustee’ role carried out by those serving on a pension
committee/panel. The course takes place over three days (during October —
December), on multiple dates and in multiple locations. While considered essential
for new Members, longer serving Members of Pensions Committee may also wish to
avail themselves of the course.

Members have access to the LGPS Online Learning Academy (LOLA) as an online
training platform providing ‘bitesize’ learning modules. The varied subject matter
provides the ability for individuals to absorb information at their own pace with
access to further information on each module for a more in-depth understanding of a
particular area.

The course includes six training modules and covers all the key areas to successfully
govern the Fund. As well as delivering training support, the training platform tracks
the progress of training plans and provides a record of activity. The platform allows
participants to ‘dip in and out’ as and when time allows and it is recommended that
completion of the course should be accomplished within the calendar year.

In addition to recommended training set out in 3.16 to 3.18, MPF provides Members
with the opportunity to attend a range of virtual and in person LGPS pension-related
events. An outline of those known events is attached as an appendix to this report.
As other opportunities arise, they will be advised to Members.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Fund makes a budgetary provision for training. Members will be advised of the
costs of events on a case-by-case basis.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There is a statutory requirement for Pension Boards to evidence current levels of
knowledge and understanding and for the Fund to include detailed information on
training events offered and attended by elected Members in its annual report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

As set out in section 4.

RELEVANT RISKS

Failure to maintain an appropriate level of knowledge and skills, commensurate with
that thought appropriate for those acting in a trustee-like role in the LGPS, may
impair effective decision-making and the requirements under MIFID Il. Suitable and
effective training and development activity should assist in mitigating this risk.

Page 87



8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

8.1 Training needs assessments are undertaken periodically to assist in the
development of learning opportunities.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no equality implications arising from the report. The additional flexibility
provided by online learning enhances the training offer to elected members. Support
is available for Committee Members who may need assistance to access the
programme.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are none arising from this report. The increased availability of virtual learning
will help to reduce travel.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are none arising from this report.
REPORT AUTHOR:  Peter Wallach
Director of Pensions
telephone: 01512421309
email: peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk
APPENDICES
Appendix 1 Summary of known training opportunities.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CIPFA Pensions Knowledge and Skills Framework Pensions Knowledge and Skills
Framework | CIPFA

The Good Governance project LGPS Scheme Advisory Board - Good Governance
(Igpsboard.org)

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

This is an annual report to Pensions Committee

Page 88


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/pensions-knowledge-and-skills-framework
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/pensions-knowledge-and-skills-framework
https://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/projects/good-governance
https://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/projects/good-governance

APPENDIX 1

MONTH (2023)

EVENT

6-8 June PLSA Investment Conference, Edinburgh
7 June Investment Monitoring Working Party.
26-28 June PLSA Local Authority Conference, Gloucester

6-8 September

LGC Investment & Pensions Summit, Leeds

6 September

Investment Monitoring Working Party

17-19 October

PLSA Annual Conference, Manchester

15 November

Investment Monitoring Working Party

16 November

Annual Employers Conference

October —
December

LGA — LGPS Fundamentals training days; multiple dates &
locations tbc

6-8 December

LAPFF Annual Conference, Bournemouth

MONTH (2024)

January LGPS Governance Conference
March PLSA ESG conference. Online
March Investment Monitoring Working Party
March LGC Conference, Chester

Page 89




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

» WIRRAL

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: UPDATE ON INVESTMENT RELATED
CONSULTATIONS IN THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
PENSION SCHEME

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Board members with an update on consultations
anticipated by Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) from the Department of
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) over the coming months.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Local Pension Board be recommended to consider and note the report.

Page 91



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

In order for the Pension Board to fulfil its role in supporting the Scheme Manager, it
is important that Board members are informed of industry developments.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not relevant for this report. The Independent Chair of the Pension Board has
requested an update be provided.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

DLUHC civil servants have been indicating for some time that a consultation on
several key policy areas for the LGPS is expected to be issued in the near future.
This consultation was expected to cover LGPS pooling as well as other related
matters such as the implementation of TCFD (‘Task-force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosure’) requirements for LGPS funds and investing LGPS assets to
support the levelling-up agenda. Ultimately, a consultation on implementation of
TCFD requirements was released separately on 1 September.

At a speech on 9 December 2022, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that
Government will also consult on requiring LGPS funds to ensure they are
considering investment opportunities in illiquid assets such as venture and growth
capital, as part of a diversified investment strategy. It was once again reiterated that
Government will be releasing new pooling guidance for consultation. This was
expected in ‘early 2023’.

The Chancellor of Exchequer delivered his Budget on 15 March. It was stated that
the Government is challenging the Local Government Pension Scheme in England
and Wales to move further and faster on consolidating assets. A forthcoming
consultation will propose LGPS funds transfer all listed assets into their pools by
March 2025, and set direction for the future. This may include moving towards a
smaller number of pools in excess of £50 billion to optimise benefits of scale. While
pooling has delivered substantial benefits so far, progress needs to accelerate to
deliver and the Government stands ready to take further action if needed. The
Government will also consult on requiring LGPS funds to consider investment
opportunities in illiquid assets such as venture and growth capital, thereby seeking to
unlock some of the £364 billion of LGPS assets into long-term productive assets.

At the time of writing, the consultation has still not been issued.

The Pension Regulator (TPR) has published its review of the first wave of TCFD
disclosures produced by pension schemes. The review covers key findings, what
has been done well and what could be improved. The improvements suggested by
TPR largely have an overarching objective of increasing ease of understanding for
members who may be reading the disclosures. These suggestions include ensuring
appropriate background information, clarity between different scheme sections and
ensuring reports met accessibility checks.

Page 92


https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/research-and-analysis/review-of-climate-related-disclosures

3.5

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

On 11 May 2021, the government’s legislative programme was laid out and included
a Boycotts, Divestment and Sanctions Bill. In February 2022, an amendment was
moved to the Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Bill including a power for
the Secretary of State to make guidance in this area. Subsequently, this received
royal assent. No consultation or guidance on this matter has been forthcoming.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report. The implications of the proposals
arising from the consultations will be assessed as a part of responses to the
consultations.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Not relevant for this report. MPF follows prospective Scheme changes in order to be
aware of and prepare for future legislative or statutory changes.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS
There are none arising directly from this report. Refer section 4.
RELEVANT RISKS

A failure to provide the Local Pension Board with information on legislative changes
and the Fund’s activities could hinder the Board in fulfilling its statutory duties.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

There has been no consultation planned or undertaken for this report. There are no
implications for partner organisations arising from this report.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no equality implications arising from this report.
ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

Environmental, Social and Governance matters are a standing item on the IMWP
agenda.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report. Levelling Up is intended to provide
everyone with the opportunity to flourish by addressing geographical inequality.

REPORT AUTHOR:  Peter Wallach

(Peter Wallach, Director of Merseyside Pension Fund)
telephone:
email: peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk

Page 93



APPENDICES
None
BACKGROUND PAPERS

HM Government. Levelling Up the United Kingdom
CIPFA: Managing Risk in the Local Government Pension Scheme

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Page 94



Agenda Item 10

» WIRRAL

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: MINUTES OF WORKING PARTY MEETINGS

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Board members with the minutes of meetings of
Working Parties held since the previous Board meeting.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Local Pension Board be recommended to consider and note the minutes.

Page 95



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The approval of working party minutes by Pensions Committee forms part of the
governance arrangements of Merseyside Pension Fund. These arrangements were
approved by Pensions Committee as part of the Fund’s Governance Statement at its
meeting on 27th June 2011.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not relevant for this report. The Pension Board has requested that minutes of the
Working Parties be reported to it.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Investment Monitoring and Governance & Risk Working Parties (IMWP &
GRWP) enable Committee members and their advisors to consider pension matters
relating to Merseyside Pension Fund in greater detail. They are not decision-making
bodies but minutes and action points arising are reported to Committee. The
minutes provide Board members with assurance that investment matters receive due
consideration by Pensions Committee.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report. The working parties ensure scrutiny
by elected members of the performance of the Fund’s investments and
administration functions.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Not relevant for this report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

There are none arising directly from this report. The working parties ensure the
oversight of the Fund’s activities by elected members.

RELEVANT RISKS

A failure to provide the Local Pension Board with information on legislative changes
and the Fund’s activities could hinder the Board in fulfilling its statutory duties.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

There has been no consultation planned or undertaken for this report. There are no
implications for partner organisations arising from this report.

Page 96



9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
9.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.
10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 Environmental, Social and Governance matters are a standing item on the IMWP
agenda.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are none arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach
(Peter Wallach, Director of Merseyside Pension Fund)
telephone:
email: peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1& 2 Working Party minutes

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CIPFA: Managing Risk in the Local Government Pension Scheme

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Minutes of all IMWP and GRWP meetings are brought
to the subsequent Pensions Committee and Local
Pension Board.

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of IMWP held on 02 March 2023

Attendees

Councillor Pat Cleary (Chair) PC WBC
Councillor Cherry Povall (Vice- | CP WBC

chair)

Councillor Chris Carubia CC WBC
Councillor Tom Cardwell TC LCC
Councillor George Davies GD WBC
Councillor Brian Kenny BK WBC
Councillor Paulette Lappin PL SBC

Roger Bannister RB Unison Member rep
Peter Fieldsend PF Pension Board
Donna Ridland DR Pension Board
Robin Dawson RD Pension Board
Roger Irvine RI Pension Board
Pat Maloney PM Pension Board
Jill Davys JD Redington
Tom Pilcher TP Redington
Rohan Worrall RW Independent Advisor
Paul Watson PWa Independent Advisor
Peter Wallach PW MPF

Adil Manzoor AM MPF

Owen Thorne oT MPF

Alex Abela-Stevenson AA MPF

Elizabeth Barlow EB MPF

Emma Jones EJ MPF

Greg Campbell GC MPF

Allister Goulding AG MPF

Dan Proudfoot DP MPF

Neil Gill NG MPF

Joe Hull JH MPF

Roksana Klapkowska RK MPF

Yu-Jhu Lin YL MPF

1. Apologies

Councillor Andrew Gardner

Councillor Karl Greaney

2. Minutes of IMWP 15 November 2022

Noted, no amendments.

Page 99




3. Presentation: Jill Davys (JD) - Director, Tom Pilcher (TP) - Senior VP from
Redington

JD presented the management framework focusing on funding objectives, risk
budgets, liquidity and cash flow, ESG and local investment. A detailed survey has
been carried out to support Redington’s analysis.

Long-Term Funding Objective

TP presented the funding objective and pointed to the fund valuation reaching
106% funded at actuarial valuation in 2022. According to the survey in terms of
the fund’s primary objective, the top three options are consistently related to its
funding position and funding level.

In the breakdown of current Strategic Asset Allocation (SAA), public equities
account for the majority (UK equity 0.8% and overseas equity 1.5%) of the
expected return. Overall, the expected return is higher than the minimum return
required to maintain the Fund'’s fully funded position.

Rohan (RW) asked if the expected return should be lower in terms of risks. TP
agreed that the expected returns could feasibly be reduced in the context of risk
management.

Paul (PWa) asked about the current funding position and JD responded that they
have consulted with Mercer and they do not have concerns about the funding
position.

Risk Budget

In terms of the risk drivers, value at risk (VaR) and stress tests are used to
analyse the current SAA portfolio. The VaR shows that in a 1-in-20 downside
scenario, the Fund’s assets would fall by 13.9%. The exposure to individual risk
factors across the portfolio has led to a good level of diversification in the portfolio.
Among all the factors, equity has shown to be the biggest risk which is also
reflected in the stress tests. A supporting survey shows that more respondents
agree to prioritise risk management even to sacrifice some investment returns.
Redington proposed a 13% risk budget which means that asset value should not
decline more than 13% in the 1-in-20 downside scenario.

RW asked what period and volatility were used to create the VaR as the inputs
would affect the estimated output. TP explained that a hundred plus years of data
has been pulled together to work around the assumptions. Redington understands
that there are limitations of using VaR and other measures are also used in
combination to help monitor risks.

Pat (PC) asked about the risk attitude among committee members and officers.
JD shared that committee members tend to be happy to spend more time on
understanding what a risk portfolio means. Committee members would like more
clarity on the investment approach toward risks.

PWa asked about what risk factors are considered in setting up a risk framework.
TP addressed that in a perfect world a framework can bring all risk factors

Page 100



together. Longevity is one risk factor and some LGPS funds have managed this
risk specifically. Proportionately the longevity risk factor will be relatively small
compared to the investment risks in the framework.

Donna (DR) asked about the Fund'’s risk strategy compared to other funds. TP
confirmed that the Fund’s strategy is sensible and falls in the middle range among
most LGPS funds in terms of risk taking. Since the majority of the Fund’s risks
come from equity, diversification of that risk can potentially improve the risk
adjusted return of the portfolio.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

There are three ways of funding the regular pension payments, including pension
contributions, asset income and proceeds of asset sales. The higher net cash
outflows, the greater the need to hold liquid assets. Poor management of cash
flows may lead to material consequences for example to liquidate assets at
distressed prices. A secondary order of associated risk is the lack of flexibility of
the Fund'’s portfolio, and which may cause the Fund to miss investment
opportunities when they appear. The extreme scenario is to fail to make pension
payments, resulting in reputational and legal consequences.

The current cashflow position shows significant negative cash outflows, while the
estimated £150 million to £200 million income from private markets is not
incorporated into the cashflows position. After taking the private market assets
into account, a 2% divestment of assets is still required per year. This number is
relatively high compared to other LGPS funds.

In terms of liquidity, the Fund currently holds about 35% private market assets that
are expected to take longer time to liquidate at a fair price.

A supporting survey has shown sentiment of increasing the holding in income
yielding assets in order to meet the cashflow deficit. Redington has proposed at
least 60% of the projected cashflow deficit to be covered by investment income,
and to target 50% of total asset value in liquid assets in a 1-in-20 downside
scenario.

RW asked for further clarification on the definition of liquid assets. TP emphasised
that Redington takes a broad definition and considers gilts as a liquid asset. The
way they define overall liquidity is the current dealing terms on the assets and how
long it takes to turn assets into cash.

PWa asked if equity dividends are included in cash calculation and TP responded
that currently they do not allow for equity dividends and the Fund should not rely
on equity dividends for regular cash income.

ESG

JD recognised responsible investments as core to fiduciary duty and
demonstrated how to integrate ESG investments with traditional investment
objectives. Respondents to relevant survey also shows strong agreement to ESG

Page 101



investments if opportunities arise. In Redington’s assessment the Fund is seeking
to generate positive ESG impact alongside financial returns.

Chris (CC) questioned which should take priority in the decision-making process,
financial returns or ESG related fiduciary duty. JD concluded that the Fund’s
ultimate responsibility is to meet pension payments while the Fund could also face
detrimental risk if it fails to transit into net zero by 2050.

Owen (OT) explained that since the Fund’s responsibility to make pension
payments falls in a longer timeline over 2050, it is worth taking actions in the near
term to mitigate the systemic risks in issues like climate change and human rights.
Ultimately it is all about risk management in the very long term.

PWa asked if Redington provides information on manager ratings. JD confirms
that can be done and it depends on how the Fund engages with its managers.
Some objectives can be set to evaluate against managers.

PC highlighted that the Fund has taken significant steps in managing ESG related
risks and should move fast to be ahead of the curve. JD would like to gain
permission for a deep survey on ESG to help build up the framework. There are
various ways to achieve climate related targets, for example the Fund can
decarbonise the portfolio or invest in assets that help in the fossil fuel transition.

PC suggested to compare with peers in terms of meeting the net zero target. OT
emphasised that accounting carbon footprint is an useful matrix to quantify while
the decarbonisation approach may not really create an impact on the real world
emission. Peers are now moving towards the target alignment of Paris agreement
to limiting 1.5°C temperature increase.

Cherry (CP) highlighted the importance of managing ESG risks instead of
greenwashing. CC suggested that training on ESG risks will be useful. Peter (PW)
confirmed that two things are to be done, one is to undertake a survey as
proposed by Redington on ESG and the other is an event to help understand the
portfolio decarbonisation, greenwashing, and energy transition.

Redington has proposed a further discussion about what the Fund wants to
achieve to set some targets and measurements. JD explained that carbon
footprint in scope 1 and scope 2 are relatively easier to capture, while scope 3 is
more difficult to measure. Therefore, it is important to set long term targets while
allowing short term fluctuations. TP further highlighted that climate issues are
multiple faceted, and more measures should be investigated in assessing the
climate risks.

Levelling up / Local Investments

A levelling up white paper that was released last year is currently awaiting further
regulation, in which local means UK wide and up to 5% of LGPS assets are
expected in levelling up agenda. Some targets are achievable for local pension
funds such as affordable housings. Redington survey has shown that a desire to
pursue more local investment toward Merseyside region. A formal target is still
waiting for additional guidance and discussion.

Page 102



PC confirmed that the committee would like more local investments and wished
that government has set an appropriate framework for local pension funds to
utilise investments while aiming at the levelling up target.

RW asked about the rationales behind the scenario analysis regarding the climate
stress testing. TP further explained that the scenario test is about the transition
risk under cases from orderly transition into net zero to insufficient efforts been
done. While physical risk is not considered in the test.

PC highlighted the committee consensus in human rights and the importance of
establishing a structural framework to address critical issues. JD agrees that
further expansion in ESG to include engagement and stewardship. Exclusion can
also be put in place in screening companies. CC would like to see clear measures
on how changes in the real world would impact the financial returns of the Fund.

. Market Update

RW updated the market review. UK bonds have significantly fallen over 2022 (-
40.1% for UK FT all government Gilts, -46.9% for UK index-linked Gilts). PMI, an
indicator for economic activity, shows a downward trend below 50 and indicates a
potential recession. The annualised CPIs for major developed economies have
shown a sharp increase since December 2020.

In terms of equity market, the US S&P500 peaked around the end of year 2021
and then moved in a downward trend, while UK all-share has shown to be
underperforming compared to other markets. The US market outperforms mainly
due to the large constituents of growth stocks, and in the UK a large component is
financial services and energy that tend to perform relatively even across the cycle.
The difference between the MSCI World Value Index and the MSCI World Growth
Index have been narrower over the year. The Fund has a significant weight tilting
toward value stocks.

Regarding the fixed income markets, yields in US, Germany and the UK grow
significantly reflecting the high inflation and Central Banks monetary policies.
Corporate bond yields have appeared to be average compared to history, and the
spread would be expected to widen if the economy goes into recession.

In currency market, Sterling rose sharply against US dollar and Chinese yuan.
While the Brent crude oil price has come down. Emerging market equities are
looking more interesting, sector wise retails may continue to suffer.

PC asked about the situation in the labour market. RW responded that
manufacturing sector is getting weaker and the service sector is trying to pick up
the demand constrained during lockdowns. In terms of the labour market in the
manufacturing sector, less layoffs are seen due to the difficulty of rehiring labours.

. Monitoring Report

PW pointed out that there are two mandates of particular concern, one is
Unigestion Europe ex-UK equity and the other is Newton UK equity. Both have

Page 103



underperformed significantly and they are the ones that the Fund is using for
liquidity so as to meet pension payments.

PC asked about the wide variation in performance against benchmarks given the
volatility. PW responded that the Fund has not seen the value tilted portfolio
benefiting as expected.

. Responsible Investment

OT introduced the engagement working paper seeking for further comments, and
the document provides corporate lens to construct engagement in a structural
approach. JD further explained the three levers in responsible investments -
invest, engage and exclude. It establishes a mechanism to assess the
engagement level and financial materiality, the ability to influence decisions and to
collaborate with a wider sector on global issues.

CC pointed out the material issues when the Fund stops investing in certain
companies where there may have human rights issues. JD confirmed that the
importance to check with external managers to understand if they have a
consistent approach in dealing with companies with relevant issues. PC further
commented that the key will be how we engage with invested companies that are
of concern. PWa also requested for an engagement pipeline and also assessment
of the engagement for decision making going forward. OT clarified that the
likelihood of influence over what time period and what changes are looked after as
sometimes the influence and changes may not be reflected on immediate results.

RW asked about Redington’s views on carbon offset. JD confirmed that at some
points in time there are opportunities to invest in good companies involving assets
such as Timberland as OT mentioned.

The remainder of the agenda including an update on Russian investments and the
guarterly voting and engagement reports were for noting.

Page 104



Minutes of the Governance and Risk Working Party, 10.30, Thursday 9 March
2023.

Microsoft Teams meeting.

Present:

Name Initials | Organisation

Councillor Pat Cleary (Chair) PC WBC

Councillor George Davies GD WBC

Councillor Karl Greaney LR WBC

Peter Wallach PW Director of Pensions

Donna Smith DS Head of Finance & Risk

Guy Hayton GH Senior Manager of Operations &
Information Governance

Invited Guests:

Name Initials | Organisation

John Raisin JR Independent Chair of Local
Pension Board

Apologies were received from:

Name Initials | Organisation

Yvonne Murphy YM Head of Pensions Administration
Roger Bannister RB Unison

Councillor Tom Anderson TA WBC

Councillor Cherry Povall CcP WBC

Councillor Brian Kenny JB WBC

Councillor Chris Carubia CcC WBC

In attendance: Emma Jones.

Page 105



1. Approval of Minutes & Introduction

Minutes of GRWP, Tuesday 12 July 2022, were reported to Pensions Committee
and have been approved.

PW introduced the meeting and reported that members of the Local Pension Board
have been invited to observe proceedings.

2. Declarations of Interest
PW advised that Declarations of Interest are reported on an annual basis but for
noting purposes Councillor George Davies declared a personal interest that his wife

is a member of Merseyside Pension Fund.

Noting/Action points

Noted.
3. Business Plan

PW reported that he has included a draft Business Plan in the pack to show the
scope of activities and the key priorities of the Fund over the next 12 to 24 months.
There are four sections which cover the Fund'’s principal activities, projects, horizon
scanning and procurements. PW advised that the Priorities are reviewed on a
monthly basis and Projects and Activities are reviewed on a quarterly basis at the
Fund Operating Group (FOG).

PW ran through each of the sections of the Business Plan including the key statistics
of the Fund and its current valuation. PW advised that although the valuation has
fluctuated in recent months it has recovered since December 2022. PW noted that
the Fund anticipates paying £395m over the next 12 months in pensionable
payments and that the budget was agreed at the Pensions Committee on the 21
February 2023.

PW reported on the appointment of Redington and advised that the review of the
investment strategy is one of the key items. The strategic asset allocation is being
revised and sustainability and climate change scenario analysis is being integrated
into the investment strategy. PW advised on further strands in the plan including
developing an engagement policy, and staff recruitment, staff development, and
succession planning.

PW reported that we continue to improve the service provided to members and
employers. PW reported on other key areas within the Business Plan and hoped it
was an assurance to Members, as recommended by the Pension Board, that the
Pensions Committee is involved at an earlier stage in both the Fund'’s business
planning and budgeting. PW concluded that it is also an opportunity to set out what
Officers have in mind and allow Pensions Committee to introduce other matters and
issues which may not be covered.

Page 106



Questions

A discussion developed with regard to improving the funding level of the Fund,
stabilising employer contributions and reducing risk in the portfolio. PW advised this
was discussed at the IMWP (2 March 2023) and formed part of the survey produced
by Redington. PW assured Members it will remain an active area for the Fund and
will be continued to be discussed with Redington and them going forward.

JR advised that the Government are now looking at ways to separate the Pension
Fund Accounts from the Administrating Authority (as in Scotland and Wales) which
will necessitate the Pension Committee being more involved with setting the budget
plan.

PC asked if PW could expand on recruitment with regard to future planning. PW
replied it is a problem which is being looked at closely and he is working with HR as
experienced staff are required to enable efficiencies to be delivered . Although the
Fund is successful in recruiting junior staff and can provide them with training, it
takes time to gain experience and knowledge and the scope to access experienced
staff is limited.

PW advised that benchmarking of remuneration is the other consideration, and it is
reasonable that staff at the Fund are compensated in line with their counterparts at
Greater Manchester and West Yorkshire Pension Funds. PW advised he is liaising
with HR in regard to this. PW advised that there has to be a clear definition of roles
and responsibilities staff are fulfilling and ensure that processes are in place for
clarity and to build up resilience. PW is looking at ways of utilising the apprenticeship
levy.

PW advised that there are staff who have been seconded to GLIL which is useful to
both the Fund and to GLIL.

JR expanded on the fact that pension administration is far more complicated than is
generally understood by HR and PW identified some of the complex areas that
pensions administration have to undertake.

Action Points

There were no action points, and the Business Plan was duly noted.

4. Administration KPI report

PW advised that the KPI report is taken to the Pension Board on a quarterly basis
and details the various activities that are ongoing. It is helpful as an overview for
Committee and to reassure Members the Fund’s administration performance is
scrutinised on a regular basis by the Board.

GH reported that at each meeting of the Pension Board members are updated with
reports that have been presented to earlier Pensions Committee meetings and is a

Page 107



standing report of administration performance. GH advised that the full document is
contained within the GRWP pack.

GH outlined the KPI report, its key performance indicators, the internal controls
which are in place within each specific area and issues which have been raised.

Questions

JR commented that this report has been appreciated over the time it has been
presented to the Pension Board. It receives a lot of comments and questions as the
information is comprehensive and is a very positive report from a governance point
of view.

GH thanked JR and iterated that the report has also grown as a result of the
guestions asked by the Pension Board and clearly demonstrates that it is this
interaction between Board and officers that has enhanced the information contained
within the current reports.

PC commented that it is fortunate that with the Cost-of-Living crisis the Fund has not
experienced any significant increase to members leaving the pension scheme. GH
explained why some members of the scheme do choose to leave and how the opting
out process works. GH further advised that members who have opted out are
automatically re-enrolled by their employer every 3 years and must make another
decision to opt out of pension saving. GH advised on the 50/50 section of the
Scheme and how it is an option to all members for them to consider as an alternative
to opting out of pension saving.

Action Points

There were no action points, and the KPI report was duly noted.

5. Contracts report

DS presented the Contract report and reported that it is to inform Members of all the
Fund’s contracts which have been awarded and which have been subject to Waivers,
breaches to CPR’s, extensions and variations. It covers the period from July 2022 to
December 2022 as detailed within the Corporate Procurement Unit’'s Register.

DS advised that the appendix is an extract from the Corporate Procurement Unit’s
Register which details the contract awards and includes exceptions which have been
approved. DS further advised there have been no breaches for the period stated.
DS summarised the appendix and stated that MPF comply with procedural rules and
only seek exceptions when absolutely necessary.

Questions

No questions were raised.

Action Points

Page 108



There were no action points, and the Contracts report was duly noted.
6. Risk Register

PW presented the Risk Register and advised that according to the minutes of the 12
July 2022 Councillor Greaney had raised the issue that the register was not clear in
some areas. PW reported that this has been addressed and the risk weighting of
high, medium or low has been revised to relate to the net score. Further to that the
report indicates that we have increased some of the scores since the last report in
July 2022 and introduced a new risk around the audit which DS is managing.

PW radvised that it is reported to the Pension Board on a quarterly basis and is
brought to the GRWP to demonstrate that risks are kept under regular review.

GH added that there is a further IT Risk Register which is maintained and goes into
technical detail about the IT infrastructure. GH informed Members that he intends to
present Cyber Security into three distinct subject areas in future versions of the
Fund’s risk register; specifically the risk of ‘external attack’, the risk to the Fund’s
data and the risk to the IT systems that are essential to the operation and delivery of
the Fund’s functions and services.

Questions

Councillor Karl Greaney (KG) raised concerns that there seem to be a high number
of red and amber risks. PW responded that it could be a procedural issue where the
Fund perceives risks are higher than they may be and this can be reviewed. PW
explained that some of the risks are outside of the Fund’s control for example
investment risks such as the stock market and the economy which are difficult to
mitigate. PW added that operational risks will be looked at to see whether risks to
the Fund are overstated.

GH advised that some risks are sometimes outside of the Fund’s control and the
context of the risk should also be considered. GH expanded by giving the example
Cyberattacks from external criminals, stating that the likelihood of an attack cannot
be controlled, only a mitigation on the impact of such attacks. Consequently, in this
example the net residual risk will always retain a level that is ‘amber’ rated.

JR commented that he has seen Risk Registers in other LGPS Funds, and it is not
unusual to see high scoring. JR noted that Risk 9, the recruitment and retention of
staff has been raised by the Pension Board but he is satisfied that the Fund are
dealing with this adequately. JR emphasised the importance of addressing this risk.
Again, JR raised the issue whether HR are aware of the complexities of certain
areas such as internal and external management which involve activities outside
normal Council experience.

Action Points
The Risk Register was duly noted.

Operational risks are to be reviewed to see if risks are being overstated at the Fund.

Page 109



7. Compliance Monitoring reports:
o Gifts & Hospitality

e Subsidised Business Events
e Overseas Travel

DS stated the report provides Members with a summary of subsidised business
events attended by officers of the Fund, it details gifts and hospitality offered and/or
received and overseas travel undertaken from April 2022 to December 2022.
DS reported that the Pension Committee have previously approved guidance in
relation to these areas and the guidance is reflected by Wirral in its overall
governance arrangements and is set out in the Fund’s Compliance Manual.
Attached to the report is a schedule of: -

o Gifts & Hospitality

e Subsidised Business Events

e Overseas Travel
DS summarised the declarations made under the period stated. DS reported that
under the schedule for Overseas Travel some of the fees may appear to be low but
there is a note to state that some of these trips are subsidised by the organisers who
pay or contribute towards the costs incurred by Officers in attending these events.
Questions
No questions were raised.
Action Points

None.

Noting/Action Points

Date of Next Meeting — 5 October 2023 (TBC)

Page 110



Agenda ltem 11

» WIRRAL

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: NORTHERN LGPS UPDATE
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS
REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides Members with an update on pooling arrangements in respect of
Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) and the Northern Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS). Minutes of the previous Northern LGPS Joint Committee meeting are
appended for noting.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Pensions Committee be recommended to consider and note the minutes of the Joint
Committee meeting.

Page 111



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
Pooling is resulting in fundamental changes to the oversight and management of
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) assets and it is important that
Members are informed of all developments affecting the Fund.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other suitable options. It is an audit recommendation that minutes of the
Northern LGPS joint committee meetings are reported to Pensions Committee.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Northern LGPS Investment pool was established between Merseyside, Greater

Manchester and West Yorkshire Pension Funds in response to the revised LGPS
Investment Regulations 2016 which were, in part, designed to facilitate the pooling
of assets between LGPS funds and improve access to infrastructure investments.

3.2

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Minutes of the previous Northern LGPS joint committee meeting are attached
at appendix 1.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report. The operating costs of the Pool
are reported annually and shared equitably between the participating funds.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

LGPS funds are required to pool their assets in order to comply with Regulation
7(2)(d) of the 2016 Investment Regulations. The regulation requires
administering authorities to set out their ‘approach to pooling investments,
including the use of collective investment vehicles and shared services’ in their
Investment Strategy Statement.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

There are none arising directly from this report. The Joint Committee

provides monitoring and oversight of the operations of the Northern LGPS
Pool.

RELEVANT RISKS

Pooling has resulted in fundamental changes to oversight and management of
LGPS assets. It is essential that Pensions Committee exercises its governance

responsibilities in accordance with the Council’s constitution.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

There has been no consultation planned or undertaken for this report. There are
no implications for partner organisations arising from this report.

Page 112



9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no environment and climate implications arising from this report. The
NLGPS has a Responsible Investment policy which explicitly addresses
environment and climate implications as financially material to the long-term
performance of investments.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are none arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR:  Peter Wallach
(Peter Wallach, Director of Merseyside Pension Fund)
telephone:
email: peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Minutes of Joint Committee meetings.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Local Government Pension Scheme: Investment Reform, Criteria & Guidance

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

The Northern LGPS update is a standing agenda item on
Pensions Committee

Page 113


mailto:peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHERN LGPS JOINT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

2 February 2023

Commenced: 11:00

Present:
Councillor Oliver Ryan

Councillor Andrew Thornton

Elizabeth Bailey
Councillor Pat Cleary

Sandra Stewart
Peter Wallach
Euan Miller
Rodney Barton
Tom Harrington

In attendance

Steven Taylor

Neil Cooper
Mushfiqur Rahman

David Olliver
Alex Jones
Owen Thorne
Adil Manzoor
Colin Standish
Simon Edwards
Alan McDougal
Janice Hayward
Tom Powdrill
Conor Constable

Apologies for
Absence:

Councillor Cherry Povall

23 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

24 MINUTES

ClIr Gerald P Cooney (Chair)

Terminated: 12:20

Chair, Greater Manchester Pension Fund
Vice-Chair, Greater Manchester Pension
Fund

Chair, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Deputy Chair, West Yorkshire Pension
Fund

Chair, Merseyside Pension Fund

Director of Pensions, GMPF

Director of Pensions, MPF

Managing Director, WYPF

Retiring Director of Pensions, WYPF
Assistant Director of Pensions,
Investments, GMPF

Assistant Director of Pensions, Special
Projects, GMPF

Head of Pension Investment, GMPF
Investments Manager for Public Markets,
GMPF

Senior Investments Manager, GMPF
Investment Officer, GMPF

Merseyside Pension Fund

Merseyside Pension Fund

West Yorkshire Pension Fund

West Yorkshire Pension Fund

PIRC

PIRC

PIRC

PIRC

Deputy Chair, Merseyside Pension Fund

The Minutes of the meeting of the Northern LGPS Joint Committee held on 6 October 2022 were

agreed as a correct record.

25 COMMON CUSTODIAN UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Pensions (GMPF) / Assistant Director for
Investments (GMPF). Representatives of Northern Trust presented an update on the key
milestones, deliverables and high level KPIs applicable to their appointment as the common
custodian to the Northern LGPS pool.

Page 115



The Committee received a presentation from the Relationship Manager for Northern Trust. The
presentation set out Key Performance Indicators, measuring trade settlement, income collection and
straight through trades.

The Key Milestones and Deliverables that were completed and in progress for GMPF, MPF and
WYPF were presented to the committee.

RESOLVED
That the report and presentation be noted.

26 COMMON CUSTODIAN - CONTRACT EXTENSION AND FEE REVIEW

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Pensions (GMPF) / Assistant Director for
Investments (GMPF). The report recommend that the three underlying Northern LGPS Funds
appoint Thomas Murray Ltd (TML) to carry out a fee review and custodian monitoring exercise of
their contractual arrangements with Northern Trust.

It was reported that officers believed it was now appropriate to begin considering whether the
appointment of the Northern Trust should be extended for a further 5 years. This would be
considered against a background of i) the three underlying Northern LGPS Funds being broadly
satisfied with the current common custodial arrangements; and ii) the knowledge that transitioning
custodians was a very substantial and resource intensive undertaking.

Before deciding whether to extend for a further 5 years, officers believed it was important to ensure
that the current contractual arrangements with Northern Trust continued to provide value for money.
As such, it was proposed that the three underlying Northern LGPS Funds sought to appoint TML to
carry out a fee review and custodian monitoring exercise. TML were best placed to undertake this
work, given their status as the pre-eminent custodian selection and monitoring specialist, and
having been heavily involved in the initial procurement project leading to Northern Trust’s
appointment. TML’s fee was not expected to be material.

Once the proposed fee review was completed, this would be considered alongside an assessment
of the custodian’s performance during the initial contractual period. It was planned that a further
report would be brought back to a future meeting of the Northern LGPS Joint Committee
recommending that the option to extend the appointment of Northern Trust for a further 5 years be
exercised, or otherwise.

RESOLVED

That the three underlying Northern LGPS Funds appoint Thomas Murray Ltd (TML) to carry
out a fee review and custodian monitoring exercise of their contractual arrangements with
Northern Trust.

27 POOLING UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Managing Director (WYPF), the report provided an
update on pooling activity since the previous Northern LGPS Joint Committee meeting and
summarised relevant national pooling developments.

In regards to the revisions to guidance on LGPS asset pooling it was reported that on the 9
December the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that Government would also consult on
requiring LGPS funds to ensure they were considering investment opportunities in illiquid assets
such as venture and growth capital, as part of a diversified investment strategy. It was once again
reiterated that Government will be releasing new pooling guidance for consultation. This was
expected in ‘early 2023’.

Page 116



Lee Rowley MP was the new minister for Local Government and would therefore take up
responsibility for the LGPS.

As set out on the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board website, the Board Chair, Clir Roger Phillips, and
Board Secretary Jo Donnelly had a meeting with the Minister on 7 December 2022. Topics
discussed included pooling, government progress on the Good Governance recommendations,
climate risk and reporting regulations for the LGPS and the impact of National Living Wage
increases in the coming years on local government.

In early January 2023 it was reported that the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea was
seeking to exit the London CIV pool. This would be the first time that a LGPS fund had proposed
withdrawal from one of the eight LGPS pools.

Given the further ministerial changes and the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea activity,
there could clearly be further delay and/or material amendments made to the proposed LGPS
consultation.

RESOLVED
That the report be noted.

28 SCHEME ADVISORY BOARD UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Pensions, MPF, providing an update on the
last meeting of the Investment, Governance & Engagement (IG&E) Sub-Committee that had taken
place.

The principal items on the agenda for the 28 November meeting were:

e Code of Transparency Update. Contractual arrangements with Byhiras were discussed. It
was proposed that a user group comprising frequent and infrequent users of the system be
established to consider proposed enhancements to the Byhiras reporting system and their
value to users.

e RIAG Chair’s (Director of GMPF) report. An update on the most recent RIAG meeting was
provided. The meeting focused on TCFD reporting and a variety of views had been
expressed around targets, methodologies, the role of Pools and the challenges of Scheme-
wide reporting. It was important that the statutory guidance from DLUHC provided
clarification on the various matters.

e DLUHC Regulatory Update. The consultation on TCFD reporting had closed. More than
120 responses. Constructive approach. A consultation on Pooling and Levelling Up would
be issued when feasible. Climate risk regs needed to be in place by 1 April 2023.
Considering whether the annual council report on spend known as the SF3 return could be
expanded to include more information on Investments such as ‘Broad asset categories and
Pooling’.

RESOLVED
That the report be noted.
29 UPDATE ON RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

Consideration was given to a presentation of representatives of PIRC, which set out the Q3 2022
Northern LGPS Stewardship Report (attached at Appendix 1).

The Committee were advised of PIRC were encouraging companies to adopt the global reporting

initiatives on tax standards. This was initially filed at Amazon and was also approved by the SEC.
The Tax Transparency Shareholder Proposal was then filed at subsequent companies including

Page 117



Microsoft and Cisco. It was reported that other investors have now taken this model resolution and
filled it at companies.

An update was provided on the resolutions brought by GMPF. Following GMPF co-filing a
resolution during 2022, Unilever agreed to publish nutrition scores for its food portfolio against
external health metrics and set new targets. Prior to the engagement Unilever had been disclosing
volumes of ‘healthy’ vs ‘unhealthy’ products it sold based on its own nutrient profiling model, making
it less resilient to regulatory changes. Co-Fillers agreed to withdraw the resolution providing the
company set targets to reduce the proportion of ‘unhealthy’ products it sold.

Further, GMPF submitted paperwork relating to a proposed resolution requesting that Nestle, the
largest food and beverage manufacturer in the world, provided strategic plans and targets to
increase sales derived from healthier food and beverage products. The co-filing group advised
Nestle of the intention to submit a resolution two weeks ago. A series of engagement meetings with
the company had been scheduled ahead of the filing deadline (early March) during which a
negotiation between the investor group and the company would take place.

In regards to Freedom of Association resolutions, there were a number of these resolutions being
filed as US companies this year. Shareholders urged the Board of Directors to commission and
oversee an independent, third-party assessment to Starbucks adherence to its stated commitment
to workers’ freedom of association and collective bargaining rights as contained in the International
Labour Organisation’s Core Labour Standards and as explicitly referenced in the company’s Global
Human Rights Statement.

RESOLVED
That Members note the Q3 2022 Northern LGPS Stewardship report.

30 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Pensions (GMPF), the provided members of
the Northern LGPS Pool Joint Committee with an update on performance measurement.

An extract from the Northern LGPS reporting for periods to 30 September 2022 was attached as an
Appendix (note that returns for the three year period are un-annualised). The reporting assisted in
fulfilling both reporting requirements to Government, and any oversight obligations of the Joint
Committee.

Officers continued to work closely with Portfolio Evaluation to separately identify NPEP and GLIL
returns in these performance reports, given their importance to the Northern LGPS proposition.

RESOLVED
That the report be noted.

31 GLIL UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director for Local Investment and Property
(GMPF). The report updated members on progress with the Northern Pool’s direct infrastructure
investment platform (GLIL) and to give an interim update on the consultation exercise amongst
stakeholders and wider market into how GLIL should position itself.

With regard to the consultation exercise, there had been significant engagement by the
stakeholders and the GLIL team have learnt a great deal from the feedback about their expectations
from GLIL and their perspective on the way forward. This had been extremely helpful but had
required significant re-drafting of plans. This should result in a better plan for the way forward and
one with a shorter implementation timetable. The broad themes were that there was not a
perceived need for structural change and creation of new entities but that managerial changes, tax

Page 118



efficient charging mechanisms and enhanced governance procedures could drive necessary
improvements. Engagement continued with advisers and other stakeholders and it was anticipated
that preliminary proposals would be available in the new financial year.

Members were updated on investment progress. Attached to this report was the GLIL report to
investors for the period ending 30 September 2022. The key highlights of this report and of activity
post the issuing of the report to date, were:

Fund NAV stood at £2.65bn, slight reduction from £2.7bn at 30 June. IRR since inception of
11.1% and 22% over the last 12 months. £266m of distributions returned to investors since
inception.

Following the date of the report GLIL had deployed in excess of £5650m with the majority
invested in 2 assets. On 1 November £200m for a 6.25% stake in Hornsea 1, one of the
largest operational offshore windfarms in the world powering over 1 million homes. 20
January 2023, £306m for a 25% stake in the M6 Toll road, the UK’s only true toll road that
helped to reduce congestion on the heavily used M6 through Birmingham, smaller follow on
investments had been made via GLIL’s holding in Semperian

GLIL also completed the exit of its portfolio of Biomass asset managed by lona Capital
following the issuing of the report, this investment was no longer considered appropriate for
GLIL given that fees were being paid to a manager. The assets were sold to a group of
Scottish LGPS funds led by Lothian Pension Fund.

Market for Infrastructure investments remained strong as the attraction of assets benefitting
from inflation linked revenues was increasingly felt. Increase in Gilt yields could lead to a
repricing of assets however the strong demand and availability of capital chasing scarce
opportunities could limit this. Price caps and windfall taxes had had an effect of renewable
energy assets that had performed strongly as a result of the elevated power prices.

RESOLVED
That the report be noted.

32

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED
It was noted that the next meeting of the Northern LGPS Joint Oversight Committee was
scheduled to take place on 13 April 2023.

CHAIR

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTHERN LGPS JOINT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

13 April 2023
Commenced: 11:00 Terminated: 12.20pm
Present: ClIr Gerald P Cooney (Chair)  Chair, Greater Manchester Pension Fund
Councillor Andrew Thornton Chair, West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Councillor Pat Cleary Chair, Merseyside Pension Fund
Elizabeth Bailey UNISON
Ken Drury UNITE
Alan Flatley GMB
In attendance Sandra Stewart Director of Pensions, GMPF
Peter Wallach Director of Pensions, MPF
Euan Miller Managing Director, WYPF
Tom Harrington Assistant Director of Pensions,
Investments, GMPF
Paddy Dowdall Assistant Director, Local Investment and
Property
Steven Taylor Assistant Director of Pensions, Special
Projects, GMPF
Mushfiqur Rahman Investments Manager for Public Markets,
GMPF
Alex Jones Investment Officer, GMPF
Owen Thorne Merseyside Pension Fund
Adil Manzoor Merseyside Pension Fund
Greg Campbell Merseyside Pension Fund
Leandros Kalisperas Chief Investment Officer, WYPF
Robert Hulme West Yorkshire Pension Fund
Alan McDougal PIRC
Tom Powdrill PIRC
Conor Constable PIRC
Apologies for Councillor Cherry Povall - Deputy Chair, Merseyside Pension Fund
Absence: Councillor Oliver Ryan — Vice-Chair, Greater Manchester Pension Fund

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

34. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Northern LGPS Joint Committee held on 2 February 2023 were
agreed as a correct record.

35. COMMON CUSTODIAN UPDATE

The Assistant Director of Pensions Investments, GMPF submitted a report, which provided details of
key performance indicators and key milestones and deliverables for the quarter to 31 December
2022 in relation to Northern Trust (NT) in their capacity as the common custodian to the Northern
LGPS pool, as attached in an appendix to the report.

Page 121



RESOLVED
That the report and presentation be noted.

36. UPDATE ON INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COST BENCHMARKING

Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director of Pensions Investments, which
provided Members with an update on investment management cost benchmarking for 2021/22.
John Simmonds and David Jennings of CEM Benchmarking also delivered a presentation.

Analysis of the interim 2020/21 data indicated that the Northern LGPS remained low cost and was
below the median (average) cost of its peer group (which consisted of 19 global pension funds
(inclusive of Northern LGPS) ranging from £18.6 billion to £106.3 billion.

In 2014/15, CEM calculated Northern LGPS’ benchmarked costs to be 0.35% (£112 million relative
to an average Pool value of £29 billion). The Northern LGPS’ costs increased to 0.37% (£203
million relative to an average Pool value of £55 billion) in 2021/22.

When adjusting for the increase in assets and changes in strategic asset allocation over the last
eight years, CEM calculated that Northern LGPS’ like for like costs would be 0.55% (£299m) in
2021/22. On this basis, Northern LGPS had generated underlying savings of 0.18% (£96m) in
2021/22.

CEM had also benchmarked Northern LGPS’ costs against a peer group of 19 relatively similar
sized global funds (including 1 other large UK LGPS fund and 2 other LGPS pools (based on the
data submitted by the pools and available to CEM)). The peer group actual cost was 0.52%. To
calculate the benchmark cost, CEM apply peer median costs at an asset class level to the Northern
LGPS’ asset mix. The benchmark cost in 2021/22 was 0.40% (£221m). On that basis, the Northern
LGPS was 0.03% (£18m) lower cost than the benchmark.

RESOLVED
That the content of the report and the presentation be noted.

37. POOLING UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Managing Director (WYPF), providing an update on
pooling activity since the previous Northern LGPS Joint Committee meeting and summarised
relevant national pooling developments.

It was reported that, on 3 January 2019 MHCLG released new draft statutory guidance on LGPS
asset pooling for ‘informal’ consultation. Parties that were consulted include pools, administering
authorities and local pension boards. The guidance was intended to replace previous pooling
guidance, in particular the LGPS Investment Reform Criteria and Guidance issued in November
2015 (‘the 2015 guidance’).

As per discussion at previous meetings, the draft statutory guidance appeared to blur the original
four criteria in the 2015 guidance. In its place the guidance had 6 sections covering; structure and
scale, governance, transition of assets to the pool, making new investments outside the pool,
infrastructure investment and reporting. Government was yet to publish a response to the
consultation (it appeared that it would be superseded) and therefore the 2015 guidance remained in
force.

DLUHC civil servants had been indicating for some time that a consultation on several key policy
areas for the LGPS was expected to be issued in the near future. The consultation was expected to
cover LGPS pooling as well as other related matters such as the implementation of TCFD (‘Task-
force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosure’) requirements for LGPS funds and investing LGPS

Page 122



assets to support the levelling-up agenda. However, a consultation on implementation of TCFD
requirements was released separately on 1 September 2022.

At a speech on 9 December 2022, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that Government
would also consult on requiring LGPS funds to ensure they were considering investment
opportunities in illiquid assets such as venture and growth capital, as part of a diversified investment
strategy. It was once again reiterated that Government would be releasing new pooling guidance
for consultation.

Members were advised that the Chancellor of Exchequer delivered his Budget on 15 March. It was
stated that the Government was challenging the Local Government Pension Scheme in England
and Wales to move further and faster on consolidating assets. A forthcoming consultation would
propose LGPS funds transfer all listed assets into their pools by March 2025, and set direction for
the future. This may include moving towards a smaller number of pools in excess of £50 billion to
optimise benefits of scale. While pooling had delivered substantial benefits so far, progress needed
to accelerate to deliver and the Government was ready to take further action if needed. The
Government would also consult on requiring LGPS funds to consider investment opportunities in
illiquid assets such as venture and growth capital, thereby seeking to unlock some of the £364
billion of LGPS assets into long-term productive assets. At the time of the report, the consultation
had still not been issued.

In respect of London CIV developments, it was explained that, in early January 2023 it was reported
that the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea (‘RBKC’) was seeking to exit the London CIV
pool. This would be the first time that a LGPS fund had withdrawn from one of the eight LGPS
pools. Shortly after this, it was also reported the London Borough of Bromley may also be seeking
to exit the London CIV pool.

However, following a meeting of RBKC'’s Investment Committee on 15 March, it was announced
that the pension fund had decided against leaving LCIV. In addition, following a meeting of
Bromley’s Pension Committee on 13 March, it was announced that Bromley Pension Fund had
decided against leaving LCIV.

RESOLVED
That the report be noted.

38. SCHEME ADVISORY BOARD UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Pensions, MPF, providing an update on the
last meeting of the Investment, Governance & Engagement (IG&E) Sub-Committee that had taken
place.

Actions & Agreements from the meeting on 28 November 2022 were appended to the report.

The principal items on the agenda for the 6 February 2023 meeting were:

e Code of Transparency Update - the standing item on compliance was reported.

e The Byhiras reporting system was discussed. To encourage greater use of the system
by users and non-users, it was proposed that the system’s capabilities be explained and free
training be provided.

o Climate Risk awareness survey - Limited responses from London funds. A number of
responses indicated limited preparation for requirements of TCFD reporting. Options for
raising awareness were mooted.

e Sharia Compliance Report - The implications of the legal opinion were discussed along
with options to move matters on.

e DLUHC Regulatory Update - No update was available.

Page 123



RESOLVED
That the report be noted.

39. UPDATE ON RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

Consideration was given to a report and presentation of representatives of PIRC, which outlined
their proposed approach for reviewing the NLGPS approach to voting and set out the Q4 2022
Northern LGPS Stewardship Report (attached at Appendix 1 to the report).

Mr Powdrill and Mr Constable, PIRC Ltd, Responsible Investment Advisor to the Northern LGPS
began by explaining that voting and engagement were a cornerstone of the Northern LGPS
responsible investment activities. Whist formed bottom up from and by administering authorities,
Northern LGPS had its own responsible investment principles and a shared approach to
stewardship activities. The single approach was designed to increase the voice of the funds and
maximise the impact they had in reducing ESG investment risks.

To understand how the single approach was playing out in practice, a short research report will be
produced examining voting alignment across the three funds. This would aim to provide information
on the level of alignment and highlight where there may be any differences. The objective was to
provide Northern LGPS and the three funds with insights on voting alignment to inform discussions
about how they could best meet their stewardship responsibilities both individually and collectively.

Members were advised that a report outlining the analysis would be submitted to the next meeting
of the Joint Committee.

Mr Powdrill and Mr Constable then presented the Q4 2022 Northern LGPS Stewardship report,
which focused on Shareholder Resolutions and explored further the following issues:
o the cost of living crises and executive pay;

e banks and the bonus cap;

¢ Ongoing discussions with a number of companies regarding Just Transition;

¢ Retail supply chains and Modern Slavery; and

e Focused on two shareholder resolutions in respect of healthy markets and workforce issues.
RESOLVED

That PIRC’s proposed approach for reviewing the NLGPS approach to voting, and the Q4
2022 Northern LGPS Stewardship report, be noted.

40. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Pensions (GMPF), the provided members of
the Northern LGPS Pool Joint Committee with an update on performance measurement.

It was explained that, at the Shadow Joint Committee meeting of 10 January 2019, Members
endorsed the appointment of Portfolio Evaluation Ltd as the common performance measurement
provider for the Pool.

An extract from the Northern LGPS reporting for periods to 31 December 2022 was attached as an
appendix to the report. The reporting assisted in fulfiling both reporting requirements to
Government, and any oversight obligations of the Joint Committee.

Portfolio Evaluation Ltd recently notified clients of their intention to cease trading on 14 September
2023. Portfolio Evaluation Ltd would produce Northern LGPS reports up to and including the period
ending 30 June 2023. Officers had begun the process of reviewing potential alternative common
providers.

Page 124



RESOLVED
That the report be noted.

41. GLIL UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director for Local Investment and Property
(GMPF) updating members on progress with the Northern Pool’s direct infrastructure investment
platform (GLIL).

It was reported that GLIL had progressed well and had one external investor, NEST. There had
been some engagement with other pools but this had not progressed as well as hoped. Officers
had reflected on this and sought to analyse why; and to review the operation of GLIL to ensure that
it served the objectives of current owners. An external consultant had been engaged to review the
consult with stakeholders and a timetable was agreed with the Joint Committee to review options.

The feedback from stakeholders had been substantive and constructive and required a significant
revision of proposals. Pending asset allocation reviews, the outcome of which may also have had a
significant impact on what a future GLIL should look like to best serve Northern LGPS Funds. For
these reasons further delays were envisaged before the conclusion of the project. Progress would
be reported to the Joint Committee as and when available.

The GLIL report to investors for the period ending December 2022 was appended to the report. The
last quarter of 2022 was a busy one for GLIL, it concluded the previously highlighted transactions to
acquire a stake in, Hornsea 1, which was at the time, the world’s largest fully operational offshore
wind farm, as well as the sale of assets managed by lona Capital. GLIL also entered into an
agreement to purchase a significant minority stake in the M6 toll road. The transaction completed
post the period end.

The core priorities for GLIL over next quarter and 12 months were reported as follows:

. Management of investors’ current allocations in accordance with the mandate;
o Continue to implement ESG strategies in line with investee Fund’s objectives;
. Completion of consultation exercise and implement of resulting recommendations; and
¢ Continued Engagement with other LGPS Fund’s and Pools and potential aligned non LGPS
investors.
RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

42. PROPERTY FRAMEWORK

Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director, Local Investment and Property, which
informed Members on the use of the Northern LGPS property Framework by GMPF and WYPF.

It was explained that the Northern LGPS Property framework covered the following lots:

1. For the management of a discretionary UK direct property portfolio investing predominantly
in core property, mostly on an unleveraged basis.

2. For the management of an advisory UK direct property portfolio investing predominantly in
core property, mostly on an unleveraged basis.

3. To provide property management services on a UK property portfolio (predominantly
invested in core property on an unleveraged basis).

4. To appoint an adviser of management and consultancy services in relation to a regional
investment portfolio focused on the North West of England and West Yorkshire. The
appointed adviser would be expected to make recommendations to the member funds within
the pool.

Page 125



5. To provide property valuation services, potentially on a range of UK property portfolios,
ranging in size from £300m to over £1bn.

6. For the management of a portfolio of UK properties deemed to require intensive asset
management, for example, longstanding vacancy, refurbishment/capital expenditure risk,
short WAULTSs with renewal risk.

Members were advised that WYPF were currently using the framework for lot 1 and GMPF were
currently using the framework for lot 4, the timetables for both were detailed in the report.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.
43. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
RESOLVED

It was noted that the next meeting of the Northern LGPS Joint Oversight Committee was
scheduled to take place on 6 July 2023.

CHAIR

Page 126



Agenda Item 12
»WIRRAL

PENSION BOARD

20 JUNE 2023

REPORT TITLE: PENSION ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT

[PERIOD OF 1 JAN - 31 MAR 2023]

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS

REPORT SUMMARY

The report provides the Pension Board with monitoring information on the key performance
indicators in respect of work undertaken by the administration team during the period:

1 January 2023 to 31 March 2023

The report appendix contains exempt information. This by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, i.e. information relating to the financial
or business affairs of any person, including the authority holding that information.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Pension Board be recommended to consider and note the report and the
exempt appendix.

Page 127



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Pension Board assists the administering authority in its role as Scheme
Manager in the scrutiny of the performance of Fund’s administration function.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not relevant for this report as The Pension Regulator (TPR) Code of Practice
contains a requirement for the Pension Board to be supplied with a schedule of KPIs
to monitor administration and internal control of the Fund.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Background and Overview

Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) provides a pension administration service to its
active, deferred and pensioner membership base in conjunction with its constituent
employers.

The Administration team comprises three distinct service areas namely Employer
Compliance & Membership (ECM), Benefits & Payroll and Operations. The
functions of each team are measured against performance standards documented
within the Pension Administration Strategy.

Robust Governance Framework - Key Performance Indicators

In line with TPR Code of Practice there is a requirement for the Pension Board to be
supplied with a schedule of KPIs to monitor administration and internal control of the
following areas:

Membership Movements

Workflow Statistics / Section & Industry Activity
Performance Standards

Pensions in Payment

Employer Base

Contribution Monitoring

Complaints

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP)
Communications

Member Web Portal (MyPension)
Cybersecurity

© 0o N OBk wwDdR

P Nl
= O

3.4 The exempt appendix to this report contains the narrative and statistical data to be

considered by members of the Local Pensions Board.

Page 128



4.0

4.1

5.0
5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are none arising directly from this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Merseyside Pension Fund is a part of the statutory Local Government Pensions
Scheme. The Fund is regulated by the Department Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities (DLUHC), the Pensions Regulator and is required to operate within
the legislative requirements of the LGPS pension regulations.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

The Pension Board assists the administering authority in its role as Scheme
Manager in the scrutiny of the performance of Fund’s administration function. An
important element of that assessment is the adequacy and availability of resources
and the efficiency and effectiveness of their deployment.

RELEVANT RISKS

MPF is one of the largest local government pension schemes with more than
145,000 members. A failure to fulfil its statutory requirements would bring significant
financial and reputational risks to the administering authority.
ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Any relevant consultations are set out in the attached exempt appendix.
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Any relevant implications are set out in the attached exempt appendix.
ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

There are none directly arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR:  Yvonne Murphy

(Head of Pensions Administration) telephone:
(0151) 242 1333
email: yvonnemurphy@wirral.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Public Service Pensions Act 2013

LGPS Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards
in England and Wales

Page 129


mailto:yvonnemurphy@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Exempt appendix of ‘Pension Administration Monitoring KPI Report’.
The PDF file may not be suitable to view for people with disabilities, users of assistive

technology or mobile phone devices. Please contact donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk if you
would like this document in an accessible format.

Page 130


mailto:donnasmith@wirral.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23
	Enc. 1 for EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23

	6 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23 – MANAGEMENT QUESTIONS
	Enc. 1 for STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2022/23 – MANAGEMENT QUESTIONS

	7 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) UPDATE
	8 MEMBERS’ LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
	Enc. 1 for MEMBERS’ LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

	9 UPDATE ON INVESTMENT RELATED CONSULTATIONS IN THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME
	10 MINUTES OF WORKING PARTY MEETINGS
	Enc. 1 for MINUTES OF WORKING PARTY MEETINGS
	Enc. 2 for MINUTES OF WORKING PARTY MEETINGS

	11 NORTHERN LGPS UPDATE
	Enc. 1 for NORTHERN LGPS UPDATE
	Enc. 2 for NORTHERN LGPS UPDATE

	12 PENSION ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT [PERIOD OF  1 JAN – 31 MAR 2023]
	14 PENSION BOARD REVIEW 2022-23 AND WORK PLAN 2023-24
	15 RISK REGISTER
	Enc. 1 for RISK REGISTER

	16 PENSION ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT [PERIOD OF  1 JAN – 31 MAR 2023] EXEMPT APPENDIX

